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PRESIDENT’S REPORT

I reported last year that
we had growth in our
membership and
strengthening of our
financial position and
this has continued.
We are now in a position
to be able to go ahead
and employ and Executive
Officer. This has been a
key objective to deliver
improved member services
and continue to provide
Paramedics with a strong
voice in important Health
issues. We aim to make
an appointment by the
end of November 2013.

Another important objective was achieved when we launched the
Paramedics Australasia eLearning activities for paramedics. The site
is user friendly and provides an innovative platform from which all
members can access the online learning activities, as well as keep
track of and register for local Chapter events and activities.
I can again report that we continue to operate at a professional
level within the complex field of Health care, and we have
achieved a great deal through the commitment, dedication and
expertise of volunteers who perform at a level expected of a
professional body. The board has used resources strategically to
retain expert staff to support them to deliver the representation
and member services that are now expected and warranted.
Among these dedicated staff are: Secretariat and conference
convener Les Hotchin, communications Amy Cptton, membership
John Hall, registration, strategy and lobbying Ray Bange, finance
and book keeping Leesa Thomas. It would not be possible to
operate PA at the present level without their valuable work on
your behalf, which goes well beyond their paid hours.
PA continues to the monitor the progress of paramedic
registration, and have responded to opportunities for lobbying
and consultations and they have presented. However there has
been no significant development in recent times. No estimate is
offered for any timeline for the paramedic registration impact
report and Ministerial determination. In a separate a development,
health ministers have adopted a policy on regulation of
unregistered health practitioners which has been well reported on
our web site.
With new CEOs in place at both St John and Wellington Free
Ambulance, a timely supportive visit from Vice President Richard
Larsen and myself took place in March. A face to face meeting
with Diana Crossan, CEO of WFA, and a telephone meeting with
Peter Bradley, CEO of St John, provided valuable opportunities for
raising awareness of the role of PA and the nature of PA activities.
Both meetings were positive, opening the way for greater
promotion of PANZ in both services. We also met with David
Waters, CEO of Ambulance New Zealand, for an update on
progress towards registration in NZ. The New Zealand chapter is
had their first AGM and are under the leadership of Sharon Duthie
which we attended. The chapter is active and growing which is an
important and strategic development for PA .
The PA eLearning platform is a unique solution that provides
opportunities for professional development activities at a time
place and pace that suits members. The eLearning modules are
available only to members of Paramedics Australasia
We have launched the Australasian Journal of Paramedicine (AJP)
formally the Journal of Emergency Primary Health Care (JEPHC), is
the official open access, peer-reviewed, international journal of
Paramedics Australasia.
With a new look and feel, the AJP will feature unique, innovative
and hard-hitting research relevant to the paramedicine community
in Australasia and internationally. The journal will advance and
promote the science of pre-hospital care research, and provide an
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avenue for publishing a range of studies – including short
reports, case studies, literature reviews, research updates and
small experiments.
The new AJP Editor is Dr Malcolm Boyle, who will lead the journal
with a team of Associate Editors, who come with a wealth of
knowledge and experience in the field.
Paramedics Australasia continues our work promoting Australasian
paramedics internationally. Working with British College of
Paramedics we develop a formal mechanism for information
sharing and collaboration. We have also continued to assist
the development of the organisation International Paramedics.
As background to consideration of regulatory policy, PA has placed
a high priority on presenting a factual picture of paramedics in
Australia. It is only with the best possible knowledge of the
operating environment that good policy can be made.
Continuing earlier work on the nature of the paramedic workforce
in Australia, PA has developed a paper that provides updated
information on paramedics following the release of 2011 census
data by occupation on Tuesday 30 October 2012.
PA has analysed the census data set and provided a comprehensive
report on the paramedic workforce in Australia.
Over this past year we have strengthened the PA Continuing
Professional Development program, this is a voluntary regulation
program that will form the basis of our ongoing move towards
professional registration.
We have developed a set of paramedicine role descriptors to
provide an introduction to the current clinical roles within
Paramedicine in Australia and New Zealand. This work covers
the broad classifications of professional, technical and
communications streams of practice. This has been an important
piece of work that for the first time captures the clinical roles of
Australasian Paramedics.
We have continued to contribute to Health Care policy, PA
vice-president, Richard Larsen has attended meetings of Health
Workforce Australia’s Health Professions, Standing Advisory
Committee to represent the views of Paramedics.
PA New Zealand prepared a formal submission to the recent
review of the Health Practitioners Competence Assurance (HPCA)
Act 2003. The review commenced on August 31 2012 with the
release of a discussion document published by the Ministry of
Health seeking views from stakeholders.
I am very proud that we have delivered results well beyond the
norm for our infrastructure and resources on our Members behalf.
In summary we have had another busy year that has stretched us
yet we have been productive. I am grateful to the Board for their
continued support. The Chapter chairs and Committee members
have continued to increase their focus on member services and
provision of an exceptional range and number of CPD sessions.

Achievements by PA 2009-2013
Paramedics Australasia has articulated a national strategy for
the future directions of paramedic practice at the same time as
implementing sweeping organisational change. This has involved
leadership through greatly enhanced communication with members
of the profession and other key stakeholders within the region.
Some of the more significant activities in that process are:
Meetings and liaison activities with key decision makers and
related professions
• Ministers and Shadow Ministers across Australia and New Zealand
• Key MPs and Senators / political advisors and Committees
• Directors General, Directorate staff and CMOs in Health Departments
• Health Complaint and Health Consumer  bodies
• AGPN - liaison and participation in events
• AHCRA - participation as a full member of Alliance, lobbying activities
• NRHA - participate as full member of governing Council
• SARRAH - close working relationships e.g. Scholarships, national lobby
• HCRRA, Rural Health West,  Health Consumers Council, other groups
• ACEM - Liaison, CPD, joint conferences
• ATS - liaison, joint conference
• CRANA - working relationship, information sharing
• RCNA - working relationship, information sharing
• CENA - liaison, joint CPD, workshops, conferences
• Heart Foundation - working relationship, information sharing,
workshops
• NCAU - ongoing alliance, information sharing,  joint registration
workshops
• ACHSM - participation in conference activities
Development of reports and submissions
(major items only listed)
• NHHRC submission on health reform
• Response to NHHRC Interim Report
• Complaints procedures
• Information sharing and privacy
• Clinical training; governance & organisation
• Inquiry into St John Ambulance (WA)
• ABS ANZCO workforce classifications (ABS)
• ASNSW management & operations (NSW Parliamentary Committee)
• Clinical supervision support program (HWA)
• Lead clinicians and healthcare integration
• Statutory regulation of the health professions (NZ)
• Options for regulation of unregistered health practitioners (AHMAC)
• Forgotten Health Profession briefing paper (2 Ed)
• Health workforce innovation and reform (HWA)
• Health practitioners prescribing pathways (HWA)
• Paramedic competencies framework
• National survey of paramedic profession
• Public risk and paramedic regulation - NRAS registration submission
• Optimising health care regulatory outcomes (2012 Review of
HPCA Act - NZ)
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• Paramedics in the 2011 Census
- review of workforce statistics
• ANZSCO Coding Issues
- confidential submission to Australian Bureau of Statistics
• Optimising health care regulatory outcomes - NZ HPCAA
review submission
• Review of the Tasmanian Ambulance Service Act 1982
- Tasmanian Act submission
• Para medicine Role descriptions - national policy document
Registration and regulation of paramedic practice
• Implementation of the NRAS Registration Project and monitoring
of AHPRA
Employer and research body / academic liaison
• Council of Ambulance Authorities (CAA) - government funded
EMS agencies
• Private Paramedic Australia (PPA) - private employer peak body
• Ambulance Services (all Australian jurisdictions)
• Ambulance New Zealand, WFA, St John Ambulance (NZ)
• ADF - Joint Health Command
• Private employers of paramedics and related health professionals
• Sponsorship and liaison support for paramedic educators (NAPA)
• Engagement with major research and development policymakers
• Sponsorship of research projects for national government funding
Membership of key bodies
• HWA Standing Advisory Committee for Health Professions
• Australian Resuscitation Council  
• Foundation member
- International Paramedic
• HWA Interim Council of Future Health Leaders
• National Rural Health Students Network
• Membership of University, EMS provider and other Advisory
Committees
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Engagement with Inquiries and national policy development
bodies/groups
• Lead clinician consultation workshops
• Workforce innovation and reform national framework
• AHMC Future development of health workforce
• HWA Health professionals in training
• HWA Primary care roles
• HWA National Training Plan (NTP) for Doctors, Nurses and Midwives
• HWA Rural & remote health workforce innovation
• HWA: Extending the role of paramedics
• HWA: Health practitioners prescribing pathways
• HWA National Ambulance Officer and Paramedic Workforce Study
• NEHTA: Electronic health records
• AHMAC options for regulation of unregistered health
practitioners (DoH Vic)
• AIHW /ABS discussions on statistical datasets and paramedic
classifications
• Clinical Senate involvement  in various jurisdictions
• ACSQHC discussions on safety and quality in EMS
• Strategic review of Australian health and medical research
- McKeon review.
• AHMAC: paramedic regulation workshops in all jurisdictions
- NRAS review
• Network/Radar – fostering of collaborative practitioner and
research networks
Presentations and collaborative activities
• Clinical senate appearances
• ACHSM involvement
• National Union Congress
• University presentations to students and staff
Continuing professional development activities / education
and research support
• Annual PA Conference  /  Annual SPA Conference  /  Several
Chapter Conferences
• International Study Tours (USA , Canada, Singapore, other)
• Regular Chapter (local) CPD programs  /  Workshops / Evenings
• Online educational modules (eLearning)  
• Research Workshops
• Simulation and clinical support  activities and workshops
• Provision of links to significant national and international conferences

PRESIDENT’S REPORT

Personal benefit services (new services constantly under review)
• Paramedic Jobs (local and international reach)
• Special Interest Groups (SPA, NAPA and Rural and Remote Groups)
• Extensive Australian and New Zealand network of University
student societies
• Merchandise (9 online outlets offering discounted goods)
• Branded products with PA logo identifying profession
• Eligibility to carry PA postnominal letters identifying member status
• Research references and links to best practice
• QANTAS Club discounted membership
Communication and promotion of professional presence
(internally and externally)
• Informative website
- news and views with wide coverage of professional practice
• Social media networks and interaction (Twitter, Facebook,
Blogs, other)
• Daily health environment scan and media coverage
• Australasian Journal of Paramedicine electronic peer-reviewed journal
• Response magazine
- quarterly magazine
• Rapid Response
- regular monthly electronic Newsletter with the latest news

Thank you for that great work. And to you the members thank
you for getting behind us with your increased fees, your trust
and professionalism. Without this we would not have progress.

Professor Ian Patrick
ASM FPA

PA continues to deliver outstanding outcomes from having
a national voice for paramedics
• National and international recognition of role, name and
logo branding
• Substantial  growth and recognition across established Chapters
(Aust and NZ)
• Expansion of interest areas  (SPA, NAPA, R&R, Other  SIGS)
• Enhanced academic  engagement through NAPA support
• Strong student societies with a wealth of activities
• New recognition and access to Govt. Benefits for paramedics
• Expanded paramedic eligibility for government scholarships
e.g. NAHSSS
• Paramedic eligibility for Rural Health Continuing Education Program
• Paramedic eligibility for NAHRLS Scholarships
• Paramedic eligibility for RHCE2 Program
• PA  / Joint institutions award of ALTC and other research grants.
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EduSIG Report to National

E-Learning Report

The current EduSIG committee consists of Jeff Allan FPA (Convener),
Mike Williams FPA and Chris Huggins MPA.

Since the launch of our new e-Learning system in 2012 PA has
continued to add to the number and diversity of topics/services
available. This premium member only service has grown to be a
very popular CPD offering enabling members to obtain access
to both Paramedic specific and more general professional
development content.

At our last PA conference in Hobart, we conducted EduSIG survey
asking PA members their areas of interest and whether they would
be interested in becoming a member of PA-EduSIG. The results of
this survey were very encouraging:

Two of the major recent developments include:
40 returns (approx. 35%), which 24 (60%) indicated that they
would be interested in being involved in the EduSIG, of which 22
supplied their email address. Contact was made to all email address
outlining the EduSIG proposed activities.
The main areas of interest were interprofessional education,
simulation, e-Learning and work-readiness/job readiness.
SimHealth Oct 2012 – facilitated a ‘breakfast session’ on prehospital care, well attended. As a result we were invited to present
another ‘breakfast Workshop’ for the SimHealth conference at
Brisbane in Sept 2013.
This Breakfast workshop theme was on “Does SIM make student
paramedics more work ready”, while the in-conference workshops
theme was around “Does low fidelity simulation achieving high
fidelity results a in a multi-disciplinary multi-casualty simulation
reflecting inter agency teamwork”. Both sessions were well
attended and we received very positive feedback. We have been
invited back next year to facilitate another workshop/breakfast
session and a round table discussion on pre-hospital emergency
management.
We will be facilitating a ‘breakfast workshop’ at the PA conference
in Canberra using EMERGO simulation to achieve high fidelity
results in a multi-disciplinary multicasualty simulation reflecting
interagency teamwork.
We would like to take this opportunity to thank the conference
committee for their support and encouragement over the years.
Hopefully we can fly the PA banner for many more years at both
national and international educational and medical conferences.
Jeff Allan
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1 Ability to accept event registrations for Chapter CPD events &
generation of CPD attendance certificates for Chapter CPD Events
2 The introduction of the Paramedics Australasia CPD Events Topic
which hosts video’s from our chapters of various CPD events
Additional topics are currently being developed by a range of
clinical experts for release during the coming year.  Members
should email paramediclearning@paramedics.org.au if they
have any queries regarding access or use of this system.

AUSTRALASIAN COLLEGE OF PARAMEDICINE

NAPA Report

1030-1130

The Network of Australasian Paramedic Academics is a Paramedics
Australasia special interest group comprising individuals with an
interest in paramedic education in the tertiary education sector.
When the group was established the membership was drawn from
discipline leaders from the universities offering pre-employment
courses. NAPA now welcomes anyone with an interest in or
responsibility for paramedic education. The group aims to meet
biannually, and information about each meeting is disseminated via
members and the course leaders from each university in Australia
and New Zealand offering paramedic education programs.
Since the previous (2012) report NAPA has undertaken the
following activities:
• NAPA provided a response to the International Federation for
Emergency Medicine (IFEM) in relation to the “Draft Model 		
Curriculum for Emergency Medical Technicians” developed by
this organisation.
• A web site has been established under the SIG section of
Paramedics Australasia: https://www.paramedics.org.au/about-us/
special-interest-groups/network-of-australasian-paramedicacademics/about-napa/
• The procedure for formalising membership was agreed at the 3
May 2013 meeting, with the membership form available from the
NAPA web site.
• The minutes for the meeting of 31 October 2012 held at the
University of Tasmania were not available at the time the 2012 PA
report was submitted. These minutes have been uploaded to the
NAPA section of the PA web site.
• The first meeting for 2013 was held at the Central Queensland
University Gold Coast campus on 3 May 2013. The agenda and
minutes for this meeting have been uploaded to the NAPA 		
section of the PA web site.
• Almost 30 people have indicated their intention to attend the
next NAPA meeting. This is to be held on Thursday 17 October
2013 at the Australian Catholic University campus in Canberra. 		
The program is attached.
Further information regarding NAPA may be obtained by emailing
the NAPA Secretary – Bill Lord at wlord@usc.edu.au.
Network of Australasian Paramedic Academics
Thursday 17 October 2013
Venue: Room S3, Australian Catholic University, 223 Antill Street,
Watson, ACT
Time
0900-0930
0930-1000
1000-1030

Session
Matters arising from the previous meeting.
Election of Convenor and Secretary.
Exploring options for interprofessional simulation
based learning in the undergraduate setting. Gary
Strong (Programme Leader, Whitireia New Zealand)
Break

Demystifying the elusive and magical 		
“clinical” experience. We know that the clinical
experience is a magical and effective learning
environment. But what kinds of experiences are
students really having when they leave the 		
classroom? How should one measure these 		
experiences? Patient contacts?
Hours? Over the last 16 years a national grass roots
effort to collectively track and describe the elusive
and magical “Clinical Experience” has been underway.
The creation of this web-based FISDAP EMS 		
education community has yielded unprecedented 		
online collaboration, educational research, and 		
academic debate. This session will focus on the
lessons learned, the challenges of accurately tracking
clinical experiences, and measuring competency.
David Page, Paramedic Instructor, Emergency 		
Medical Services Department, Inver Hills Community
College, Minnesota.
1130-1230
Paramedics’ transition from the profession of
paramedicine to the profession of academia.
A major focus of this study will be on identifying the
issues that paramedic professionals’ face when 		
attempting to transition their habitus and capital 		
from the profession of paramedicine to the 		
profession of academia.
This study aims to:
• Identify the demographic characteristics of the
professional paramedic academic;
• Determine the factors that influence paramedic
academic identity;
• Identify the issues related to the transition of
paramedic professionals into the academy; and
• Develop a framework to assist in the transition of
		 paramedics from clinical practice into the university.
As a result of this research, there will be a better 		
understanding of what are the implications of this
paramedic academic identity for teaching and 		
research in the academy. It will aid the academies in
selecting more suitable candidates for academic 		
positions and to make their transition from 		
paramedic practice to academic practice more 		
focussed and productive. Graham Munro (La Trobe)
1230-1330
Lunch
1330-1430
Internationalizing the paramedic curriculum.
Three groups of Australian paramedic students have
had the experience of visiting New York City to learn
about the system and ride along on NYC 		
ambulances. This presentation will describe the 		
logistics involved including:
• identifying the students;
• selecting a host agency; and
• funding.
In addition we will discuss the program learning 		
objectives and future opportunities and directions.
Professor Brian Maguire, School of Medical and 		
Applied Sciences, Central Queensland University 		
paramedic program. Brian has recently returned 		
from the third paramedic student trip to NYC.
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AUSTRALIAN PREHOSPITAL
EMERGENCY HEALTH
RESEARCH FORUM (APEHRF)

The Australasian Prehospital Emergency Health Research Forum
(APEHRF), as part of the International Prehospital Research Forum
is now in its ninth year of collaboration with Paramedics Australasia
(PA), with proceedings and guidance for the review and
adjudication of abstracts submitted to the PA Annual Conference.
The excellent work of the reviewers is once again acknowledged
and commended by the APEHRF Executive, particularly in relation
to the time and quality of work that each of the reviewers
voluntarily contributes to the process. All reviews were completed
and returned to the APEHRF administrator within two weeks of
distribution, and results forwarded to the PA Scientific Committee
to determine the final selections for oral and poster presentation
at the Conference.
The APEHRF continues to promote and ensure rigorous standards
in the collection, presentation and publication of prehospital
emergency research which is assisted through ongoing
collaborations with the US (UCLA Center for Pre-hospital Care)
and the UK (999 Research Forum). To this end, our partnerships
have provided an excellent opportunity for APEHRF Best Paper
Award recipients to attend either UK or US conferences, and for US
(UCLA Center for Pre-hospital Care) Research Forum or 999 Research
Forum winners to attend PA conferences. This year we look forward
to hosting the 999 forum 2013 winner in Canberra and our 2012
APEHRF Best Paper Award recipient, Rachael Wallen, will be
presenting in the UK in February 2014.
The APEHRF committee warmly acknowledges the contributions
and support of the PA Scientific Committee throughout the past
year and would like to thank the PA Board for the opportunity to
assist with the PA International Conferences.

AUSTRALIAN
RESUSCITATION COUNCIL

This is my second annual report as the Paramedics Australasia
representative on the Australian Resuscitation Council (ARC). During
this time I have had the pleasure of working with a distinguished group
of experts who share a common goal: improving outcomes in cases of
cardiac arrest. The Council also is active in promoting community-based
resuscitation and resuscitation education, and offers advanced training
through the delivery of Advanced Cardiac Life Support courses.
The following information provides a summary of the matters discussed
at each council meeting over the previous 12 months. I was unfortunately
unable to attend the 19/20 July 2013 meeting.
23/24 November 2012 meeting
An update on the work of the International Liaison Committee on
Resuscitation (ILCOR) was provided in the lead up to the publication
of the next generation of resuscitation guidelines. This process involves
meetings of the member organisations (including the Australian
Resuscitation Council). ILCOR members will meet in Melbourne on 2122 April 2013 to continue the process of reviewing international
science and knowledge relevant to cardiopulmonary resuscitation. The
next update to the ILCOR resuscitation guidelines are due in 2015, and
will be published in the form of Consensus on Science and Treatment
Recommendations (CoSTR).
The top ten topics prioritised for COSTR 2015 are:
• Percutaneous coronary intervention (PCI) following return
of spontaneous circulation (ROSC)
• Direct transport to PCI centres
• Prehospital fibrinolytics for STEMI
• Biomarkers for acute coronary syndrome (ACS)
• Maximum time delay for primary PCI
• 12 lead ECG
• Mechanical CPR Devices in conjunction with PCI
• Clopidogrel (and similar drugs) and non-ST elevation ACS
• Improving systems of care for ACS
• Anticoagulants and STEMI
Worksheets for each topic will be developed that require the use of
a systematic review of the evidence relating to each topic. The GRADE
evidence evaluation process is used, which is a system for rating the
quality of scientific evidence and grading the strength of
recommendations appearing in guidelines.1 An ILCOR International
Consensus Conference scheduled for February 2015 will result in the
finalisation of guidelines that are due to be published late 2015.
At a local level, work to review ARC guidelines is ongoing. The
following guidelines are under review:
Guideline 11.6.1 Oxygen Administration in Advanced Life Support. This
will address the use of oxygen in cardiac arrest, and following return of
spontaneous circulation. Although the use of oxygen for conditions
other than cardiac arrest has been modified in some practice settings,
there is still insufficient evidence to warrant a policy or guideline for
care at the basic life support level. As such, Guideline 10.4: The Use of
Oxygen in Emergencies currently advises that oxygen may be beneficial
in emergencies including the management of decompression illness. It
should be noted that this advice is for individuals providing care in a
basic life support role.
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It was agreed that a guideline for the management of cardiac arrest
associate with trauma should be considered. The aetiology of cardiac
arrest is quite different from that associated with sudden cardiac arrest,
and as such the management may need to be modified.
New or revised guidelines that have been recently published are:
Guideline 2: Managing an Emergency. This emphasises the importance
of ensuring the safety of the rescuer, victim, and bystanders, and
provides guidance on when to move the victim.
Guideline 3: Recognition and First Aid Management of the Unconscious
Victim. Information previously associated with a guideline for the
management of fainting was moved into the unconscious victim
guideline.
Guideline 9.2.1: Recognition and First Aid Management of Heart
Attack. This guideline now advises the administration of Aspirin (300
mg) if directed. Some ambulance services provide advice to callers
about basic care prior to the arrival of an ambulance, and this may
include advice regarding the administration of aspirin. However, an
anomaly has been identified in cases that occur in the workplace, as
Victorian Work Safe Compliance Code: First Aid in the Workplace,
states that the dispensing of drugs needs to be managed by a medical
practitioner or registered nurse, not a first aid officer. This specifically
refers to drugs such as paracetamol or aspirin.
Guideline 9.1.4: Head Injury. This reinforces the need to refer
individuals with any head injury (with or without change in level of
consciousness) for assessment by a healthcare professional before
continuing with sport of any other activity.
8/9 March 2013 meeting
Two guidelines were approved and have now been updated
on the ARC web site (http://www.resus.org.au/):
• Guideline 9.1.7 - Emergency Management of a Crushed Victim
• Guideline 10.1 Basic Life Support (BLS) Training
The BLS training guideline reinforces the need to teach individuals to
focus on the performance of adequate CPR rather than the technicalities
of achieving set figures or rates. Although the provision of rescue
breathing (what used to be called expired air resuscitation) has been
deemphasised by some resuscitation councils, the ARC has determined
that mouth to mouth rescue breathing must be taught and assessed in
any training program. The guideline also recommends that CPR refresher
training be undertaken by individuals who are not performing
resuscitation on a regular basis. This potentially includes many
paramedics, particularly those working in non-clinical settings.
New guidelines currently under review include:
• Guideline 10.2 - Advanced Life Support Training
• Guideline 11.6.1 - Oxygen Administration in Advance Life Support

placed in a patient in cardiac arrest. The LMA is not considered
a secure airway, and as such the group discussed the current
recommendation that chest compressions are not paused to ventilate
once a supraglottic airway is in place (Guideline 11.1.1). It was
recognised that there is a potential gap in knowledge in this area,
with the ARC guideline stating that the “adequacy of ventilation with
supraglottic airway devices during uninterrupted chest compressions is
unknown.” It is known that simultaneous ventilation and compression
has the potential to adversely affect coronary perfusion pressure, and
as such the guideline states that ventilations need to be timed with
compressions.
Spark of Life conference report
The 9th International Spark of Life conference was held in Melbourne
on 19 and 20 April 2013. Local and international speakers described
interventions that have the potential to improve outcomes from
sudden cardiac arrest. Professor Laurie Morrison examined the
significant differences in cardiac arrest survival across different cities
in North America, and provided an explanation for these differences.
Laurie outlined an initiative that is currently being introduced in
Toronto, Canada that aims to improve access to early CPR and
defibrillation in the community. Many community members are
trained in CPR, but may be unaware that a cardiac arrest has occurred
near their location. The “PulsePoint” initiative aims to alert CPR trained
individuals to the occurrence of a cardiac arrest that they may be close
to and can assist with as a first responder. Data from the local
emergency medical service (EMS) dispatch centre is linked to an
“app” that subscribers can download to their mobile phones. When
a cardiac arrest emergency call is received by the EMS agency, all
nearby PulsePoint users are sent an alert that includes a text message
saying “CPR NEEDED”. Their current location and the location of the
cardiac arrest are displayed on a map, and nearby public access
defibrillators (AEDs) are also shown on the map. The uptake of this
program and the influence on cardiac arrest outcomes is currently
the subject of research.
An excellent neonatal satellite conference preceded the Spark of Life.
Speakers presented new information about the transition from
placental oxygenation to air breathing. New medical imaging
techniques allow the visualisation of aeration of the lungs following
birth, and also provide important information about the efficacy of
techniques used to support ventilation in neonates that require
breathing support. This was followed by a presentation on the role of
sustained inflations at birth based on this new evidence. This research
may eventually inform the neonatal resuscitation guidelines.
Associate Professor Bill Lord
School of Health and Sport Sciences
University of the Sunshine Coast

There remains scant high-level evidence regarding the role of oxygen
in resuscitation, and it is hoped that the results of clinical trials currently
in progress may help to inform the use of oxygen in the early stages
of resuscitation.
The meeting considered correspondence that questioned the use of
uninterrupted ventilation once a laryngeal mask airway (LMA) has been
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FINANCE SUB COMMITTEE

A continuing feature of the 2012 - 2013 financial year for
Paramedics Australasia Ltd has been the on-going commitment of
funds to the strategic objective of professional recognition for our
members and our industry.
This on-going commitment was initiated by the Board 6 years ago
and supported with enthusiasm by all PA Management Committee
and consultative forums since. It is important to note here that this
strategic positioning activity is highly valuable and significant
progress being achieved.
It is in this context then, that the past financial year has been a year
of high activity, high expenditure and high achievement for
Paramedics Australasia. Activities of note included:
• Further consolidation of the national financial structure into one
reporting entity and refinement of Chapter financial operations.
• The establishment and refinement the financial operations and
facilities for the New Zealand Chapter.
• Improvements in the PA revenue streams and member billing
processes in conjunction with further improvements to the
accuracy and currency of the member data-base.

I am pleased to report the Key Performance Indicator 1 of the
Finance Committee ie “To Monitor the Cash Flows and Financial
Performance of PA within Budgetary Parameters” has been achieved.
Key Performance Indicator 2 ie “To Provide Financial Support and
Services to PA Objectives and Initiatives” has also been achieved
along with the remaining KP1s of the Finance Sub-Committee.
I am pleased to report that specialist Company Auditor, Staines,
Reeves and Jones have conducted a most thorough and
comprehensive audit on behalf of our members in accordance
with the new international accounting standards and also in a
timely manner.
It is important for all PA members to note that the end of year
financial outcome for the Board has been a very positive outcome
in terms of funded achievement.
The Paramedics Australasia Ltd retains the capacity to achieve the
evolution towards a fully coordinated, professional and independent
Paramedics Australasia Ltd supporting our members.
M. J. Davis AM, ASM, MBA FPA, FCHSM, FAIES
Treasurer

• Full compliance with financial reporting requirements for
Registered Companies and with Corporate Governance Standards.
• Full compliance with all GST requirements and timely reporting
• Maintenance of MasterCard payment and reporting system for
office bearers across the Board and the Chapters, including a
number of changes to office bearers during the financial year.
• Meeting the simultaneous financial demands of the Registration,
On-line Learning and other projects and the on-going evolution
of PA Web and Membership Registrar services.
• Supporting the President, Directors and Chapter Officials in
representing PA in a range of National Health Practitioner
Registration and professional recognition consultative forums to
promote the need for registration of paramedic practitioners and
promote the aims and objectives of PA in this context. This
particular activity productive and valuable.
• Planning and Production of the annual PA clinical conference.
• Supporting the planning and production of Chapter clinical
conferences and professional development activities.
• Funding the development research and Scientific Agenda
Frameworks, including the review and remodelling of the
production of the JEPHC.
As your Treasurer I have maintained a constant vigilance on
expenditure levels and maintained Director’s awareness of financial
trends during this period of high activity. The Board and Management
Committee have jointly maintained the momentum and associated
progress towards the objectives of Paramedics Australasia Ltd.
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IT SERVICES
The past year has seen the appointment of a specialist systems
manager to oversee and provide our asset support on an as
required basis. This has resulted in timely intervention when faults
are notified and advice being readily available to the National office
and chapters.
Although many services can be provided by the in-house team
(national infrastructure with the purchase and administration of
local IT infrastructure),
external sourcing of specialised programs has been put in place
for eLearning, membership surveys and conference management.
National website management and regular updates is overseen by
Amy Cotton and a number of Chapter members also assist at the
local level - thanks go to those involved in this vital area.
The existing website is currently undergoing an extensive update
and will incorporate a new membership system and a shopping
cart to support member service activities.

MEMBERSHIP

PAINAUSTRALIA

This year has seen the introduction of monthly EFT payments of
the subscription. This payment option has proved popular and the
number of members using this facility is increasing rapidly. Work is
continuing for a payment portal on our new website and this will
allow members to pay the subscriptions on line. This should be
functional soon. The Board have also approved special subscription
rates for Volunteers and Retired members.

Paramedics Australia is a member organisation of painaustralia. I
attended the inaugural National Pain Summit held at Parliament
House, Canberra, in March 2010 as a representative of Paramedic
Australasia. Since then I have attended painaustralia AGMs where I
was able to promote the role of paramedics in the care of individuals
experiencing pain. My current interest is the role that paramedics may
be able to play in caring for people with chronic pain.

Another innovation this year is to allow SPA students who missed
joining at the commencement of the academic year, to apply online.
This has been working well and has increased the number of SPA
students by more than 50 to date.

This involvement in multidisciplinary pain management practice and
research has enabled research opportunities for a PhD student I am
currently supervising that involves a study of paramedic, patient and
GP experience in caring for patients experiencing chronic pain. This
research has recently been promoted on the painaustralia website:
http://www.painaustralia.org.au/media-news/e-news.html#research
Participate in New Research

The Member Management System had a complete audit late 2012
and the numbers dropped following this, as we archived many ex
and unfinancial members who had inadvertently been left on the
system by some of the larger Chapters. Following the audit, it is
my opinion that the actual figures now reflect the true financial
membership. On the positive side the Membership Committee
reviews 30-35 new applications a month. In some months the
number has been closer to sixty.

Perspectives on Persistent Pain Survey: for GPs and consumers
PhD candidate Janelle White, from the University of the Sunshine
Coast, is seeking GPs and patients to participate in a survey, for her
research into better ways to care for patients with chronic pain in
the community. For more information,
contact Janelle White janelle.white@research.usc.edu.au

The membership is increasing by approximately 25 per month
and we have an attrition rate of around 2 per month, mostly from
retirements or illness. The private sector has contributed to the
increase in membership with over 200 of our members working
in the private sector, with approximately the same number of
ADF personnel.

Although I was unable to attend the painaustralia AGM in Sydney
on 9 April 2013, I am committed to promoting the role of
paramedics in the field of pain management at future painaustralia
events. The report from the 9 April meeting is available here:
www.painaustralia.org.au/about-us/reports-documents.html#AGM2013

The overall membership as at 1st September:
Financial Membership.............. 2449
SPA ......................................... 1235

Associate Professor Bill Lord
School of Health and Sport Sciences
University of the Sunshine Coast

John Hall LMPA
Membership Registrar
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SPA REPORT

Student Paramedics Australasia (SPA) has continued operations
throughout the year as a Special Interest Group (SIG) of Paramedics
Australasia (PA), the peak professional society for paramedics engaged in
the delivery of out of hospital emergency medical services (EMS).
SPA provides a connection with student paramedics and professional
organisations to provide a focus for national representation and advocacy
across 12 universities and 18 university societies. SPA membership is
available to those who fulfill requirements of being enrolled in an
approved Australian or New Zealand pre-employment degree (or
equivalent) leading to qualification as a paramedic.
The membership price for PA-SPA was a total of $15 for 2013, not
including University Society contributions. Membership benefits include
subscriptions to paramedic publications; free or subsidized access to
PA-SPA affiliated events, and access to Clinical Training evenings; local,
state and national representation as a paramedic student; and access to
research and conference scholarships, merchandise and prizes.
University Societies
This year has been a productive year for SPA University Societies of Australia
and New Zealand, especially in growth and outreach. New societies in
Whitireia, Central Queensland University and Port Macquarie Campus of
Charles Sturt University have been established, with plans to expand into
Auckland University of Technology in the coming future. All societies have
demonstrated a propensity for activity and promotion of the SPA tenets
of networking, professional development and ongoing education
through social and professional events. Some examples include CPD Events
such as Paramedics and Poisons by Carol Wyllie, by SPU at QUT; ECG
Refresher Session with Kerrie Frantz, by PARASOC at Monash University;
and Special Op Team and Medstar tour by FUSPA at Flinders University.
Not limited to the academic and educational experience, social events
have been planned by societies to promote networking through
university societies such as rock-climbing, 10-pin bowling, Oz-tag
competitions and the ever popular lawn bowls.
This is made possible by the increased use and exposure to direct
communication through social media. This has been established through
a central forum for University Society committee members, allowing ease
of communication, and horizontal mentoring and support systems for
committee members facing similar challenges.
Communications
Through the use of social networking platforms such as Facebook and
Twitter, online communication and information dissemination has grown
this year. The methods of which we communicate with members,
conference guests and other committees has grown with technology and
digital infrastructure through the SPA website, automation of social
media posts and increased visibility of our networked brand.
The SPA Facebook page has accumulated over 2000 followers from 1300
earlier in the year. Twitter followers have also grown 30% in the past 5
months. Both these channels have proven to be valuable in terms of
promotion of events and information. The Twitter hash tag was
particularly useful in providing students, speakers and organisations a
direct way to interact with promotion of the 2013 SPA conference.
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The SPA website has also undergone changes in order to maximise
impact until rollover to a new WordPress site is implemented. Since the
start of the year, easier navigation through Quick Links and other prime
homepage positions is current and valuable. The layout of the site also
allowed custom access through smart phones, with a mobile layout.
Planning for the new site has been undertaken, and will be an attractive,

fresh and useful website to support communication activities, such as
e-newsletters, members-only section of the website for careers and forum.
The 2013 SPA International Conference
The 2013 SPA International Conference boasted the largest turnout since
the inception of SPA Conference. Hosted in Melbourne, with 280
delegates, speakers, sponsors and exhibition booth holders, this year
definitely demonstrated an enthusiasm for professional practice, further
education and networking amongst paramedic students, academic
bodies and professional industries.
The annual charity raffle was a great success in aiding the Day of Difference
Foundation. The purpose of the Foundation is to permanently reduce the
incidence and impact of children’s critical injury in Australia, with $1600
worth of proceeds going towards The Foundation’s Paediatric Critical Injury
Research Program which builds evidence to deliver improved outcomes for
critically disabled children, their parents and families.
The speakers and presentations provided experiences and insight from
paramedics internationally, and a truly unique experience. Delegates were
encouraged to view exhibition holder booths and chat to industry
representatives, universities, charity organisations and medical equipment
specialists. SPA also provided Post-Conference Networking, regardless of
geographical boundaries. New friendships were formed and future
prospects were discussed, with a total of 150 guests attending this
casual get-together. SPA would like to thank the organisations and
individuals that have provided generous support and encouragement to
the future generations of paramedics.
Melbourne has been an excellent host city in this time, however SPA believes
in the time has come to share the event nationwide and a change in scenery.
With this in mind, the 2014 Student Paramedics Australasia International
Conference will be held in Brisbane. SPA looks forward to interacting with a
whole new group of paramedic students in the Sunshine State!
Community Engagement
Within the SPA committee, the Community Engagement subcommittee
has focused on establishing relationships with external organisations and
strengthening the influence we have on local paramedic societies. This
year, SPA has achieved an improved relationship with Red Cross’ CLUB
RED with the successful running of another yearly blood donation
challenge. So far, a total of 319 out of 1000 students have contributed
to blood donations, and while this is a target SPA hopes to improve on,
SPA hopes to work with further consultation from CLUB RED and local
societies to increase parity with membership numbers in 2014.
The portfolio has also been in discussions involving a working partnership
with a major volunteer organisation; with the hope it will promote a
culture of volunteering across SPA’s membership network.
Branching further within the country, Rural and Remote Initiatives have
been working on promoting the partnership of local rural health clubs
and local paramedic societies. This is done through a partnership
between SPA and NRHSN, as well as working through local channels,
aided by the distribution of a Community Engagement Handbook.
SPA was represented at both NRHSN Face 2 Face meetings and recently
the Future Health Leaders Rural Leadership Forum in Orange, NSW. SPA
has been able to push the issues of registration, workforce needs and
extended scope of practice of paramedic professionals at all these events.
The existing networks between SPA and NRHSN will be crucial to foster a
working relationship to represent the interests of student paramedics
intending to enter rural communities.

REGISTRATION AND RELATED MATTERS

Paramedics Australasia (PA) has continued to liaise with policy makers
across all jurisdictions as it further develops its professional engagement
strategy and transforms itself to remain relevant and deliver greater
member value. This saw another demanding year as the issues of
registration and continuing professional development have been
addressed across the region as part of the commitment to developing
and maintaining the standards of education and best practice.

In December 2012, the changes in demographics of the profession were
raised with the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) with a view to having
paramedics more appropriately classified at skills level 1 under the
Australian and New Zealand Standard Classification of Occupations
(ANZSCO). This move forms part of a strategy to identify paramedics as
a discrete professional group to be counted correctly within national
Census figures in both jurisdictions.

In the second half of 2012 a national consultation exercise was held on
paramedic registration under the auspices of the Australian Health
Ministers’ Advisory Council (AHMAC). A consultation paper was issued
by the AHMAC Health Workforce Principal Committee on Options for
regulation of paramedics which set out four options for the future
regulation of paramedics and invited submissions from stakeholders.
A number of jurisdictional workshops were held at which PA was a
prominent contributor at every session through the participation of both
local and national representatives.

While the ABS recognised the strength of the PA case, they declined to
change the classification at this time since the proposed change is outside
their present limited terms of reference for review. They have highlighted
the matter for a coming major review exercise expected later in 2013/14.

Concurrently, PA undertook the most comprehensive study of the
Australian paramedic/medic workforce ever attempted, spanning all
practice settings in public, private and defence practice, and across both
local and international situations. This was done via a national on-line
survey of practitioners and students. The PA Survey confirmed the
national workforce was far larger and more diverse than was commonly
thought and that the profession was strongly in favour of national
registration with 86.7% of the respondents nationally wanting
registration under the COAG framework or National Law.
The level of response (with well over 4000 full and partial returns), and
the strong support for registration shows the profession’s commitment
to ensuring the quality of paramedic care and in minimising the risk of
harm to the public. The Survey results have been valuable in informing
our work and have been incorporated in various PA submissions and
policy discussions.
In September 2012 PA lodged a major submission supporting national
registration under the title of Public Risk and Paramedic Regulation. This
was supplemented by a number of individual and Chapter submissions.
Later analysis of submissions showed overwhelming support for the
registration of paramedics under the National Scheme administered by
the Australian Health Practitioner Regulation Agency (AHPRA). This view
aligns with the discussion paper Option 4 - Registration under the
National Law. Out of 35 discussion tables formed during the consultation
workshops, 34 supported Option 4.
To emphasise the extent and growth of paramedic practice, in November
2012 PA analysed the 2011 Australian Census results and published the
outcomes in the paper Paramedics in the 2011 Census. This was sent to
the registration project team as a supplement to the original registration
submission. The report was also forwarded to Health Workforce Australia
(HWA) for consideration by the HWA team currently undertaking a study
of the paramedic workforce.
In an almost unprecedented move, the registration consultation period
was reopened after initially closing on September 3 and continued until 25
January 2013. The catalyst for this is believed to have been a
recommendation from the Office of Best Practice Regulation (OBPR).
To inform members, the various submissions have been highlighted in
member mailings, posted on the PA website and promoted via Social Media
and the electronic newsletter Rapid Response. Articles have been run in
Response magazine and the various submissions and reports have been
disseminated to Ministers and their advisory staff with appropriate follow up.

Of particular interest in South Australia is that from 14 March, South
Australia has a Code of Conduct for Unregistered Health Practitioners
(which currently includes paramedics). The Code comes under the SA
Health & Community Services Complaints Act 2004 and sets out a range
of minimum standards. This regulatory development has particular
significance for the private sector and employers with cross jurisdictional
operations (see later). South Australia thus joins New South Wales in
having a jurisdictional Code of Conduct for unregistered practitioners.
After a long delay, the AHMAC study on the Regulation of Unregistered
Health Practitioners) was finally released in August 2013 (Decision
Regulatory Impact Assessment: Final report - Options for regulation of
unregistered health practitioners). The Standing Council of Health
Ministers agreed in principle to strengthen state and territory health
complaints mechanisms via a single national Code of Conduct for
unregistered health practitioners to be made by regulation in each state
and territory, and statutory powers to enforce the Code by investigating
breaches and issuing prohibition orders.
Since it deals with all unregistered practitioners this report has some
broad generalisations and doesn’t address the specifics of risks associated
with paramedic practice. It is significant however, as paramedics will be
captured in one or other jurisdiction or nationally by a Code of Conduct
in the absence of registration. PA intends to respond to any consultation
about the desirable conduct provisions in the Code and the distinctions
that warrant independent registration for paramedics.
Related developments in Tasmania during January February 2013 saw the
announcement of a Review of the Tasmanian Ambulance Service Act. PA
prepared a response - Review of the Tasmanian Ambulance Service Act 1982
- incorporating our established positions on operational and national
registration principles. No further consultation took place until the tabling of
an Amendment Bill to the Act in late August 2013.
The implications for individuals and providers under the revised
Tasmanian Act are substantial given the powers of the Commissioner
under the Act. Among other things, the Act would recognise as a
paramedic a prescribed person, or a member of a prescribed class of
persons, who meets any requirements, conditions or approvals prescribed
in respect of that person or class of persons. It defines a paramedic as a
person with qualifications or qualifications and experience approved by
the Commissioner and then makes it an offence to claim to be a
paramedic or to claim that a business employs paramedics if they are not
paramedics. The reservation/protection of title thus seems nearly
absolute, but subject to the determination of a jurisdictional
Commissioner and not an independent national regulatory body.
Among several other regulatory developments was a call in March 2013
by the WA Coroner for creating a definition of ‘paramedic’ and a form of
registration that will ensure that only appropriately qualified people are
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REGISTRATION AND RELATED MATTERS

entitled to use the title of paramedic and to be able to practise in Western
Australia as a paramedic. For a number of reasons, PA’s preferred position
to meet the identified needs is national registration and not jurisdictional
legislation, and this view was relayed to the Minister.
There are a number of practical issues associated with paramedic practice
that are significant in an independently registered practice regime. One of
these is prescribing rights, and alongside the direct work on practitioner
regulation and registration, PA lodged a policy submission on Health
Professionals Prescribing Pathways with the HWA.
Articulating clear roles for the profession is highly desirable so as to have a
framework around which discussions may be held with government and
other stakeholders. PA therefore has continued its work on defining and
positioning the profession, with the publication of the Paramedicine Role
Descriptions document early in 2013. These descriptors have been widely
distributed to paramedics, health professionals, Ministers and other
stakeholders within Australia and internationally. The document has been
well-received, with positive feedback and comment from members. The
NCAU has endorsed the document and the UK College of Paramedics has
expressed international support for the embedded principles. PA is
disseminating these descriptors as widely as feasible and will review the
content for any desirable editorial changes at the end of the year.
Trans-Tasman agreements mean that regulatory matters have cross
jurisdictional impacts and the Trustees of Ambulance New Zealand some
time ago lodged an Application for Regulation of Paramedics under the
Health Practitioners Competence Assurance Act 2003 (HPCAA). With the
establishment of the New Zealand Chapter, PA has enhanced its contact
with a growing number of New Zealand members and Ambulance New
Zealand in relation to regulatory matters.
An earlier PA submission in New Zealand on Statutory Regulation of the
Health Professions has been followed up in October 2012 with a further
submission to the review of the Health Practitioners Competence
Assurance (HPCA) Act 2003. The PA(NZ) submission Optimising health care
regulatory outcomes discussed the key issues relevant to paramedics and
highlighted the important role that paramedics play in the patient journey.
PA is maintaining a watching brief on current developments but at the
time of writing, there are no significant developments on paramedic
registration in New Zealand. Any decision is expected to be delayed until
the outcomes of the HPCA Review are determined.
In addition to submissions and discussion papers, our advocacy work has
continued with private meetings with political leaders and senior policy
advisors across all levels of government as well as with other health
professions and groups. These include the Australian General Practice
Network, the Australian Health Care Reform Alliance, the National Rural
Health Alliance, and Services for Australian Rural and Remote Allied
Health (SARRAH). PA has also worked closely with the Australian National
Council of Ambulance Unions on relevant issues and has collaborated
with private sector providers in examinimg proposals to establish a
national Private Paramedicine association.
These submissions and consultation sessions, workshops and private
meetings have constantly drawn attention to the role of paramedics in
healthcare and the importance of practitioner registration in creating a
suitable regulatory framework that will serve the public interest.
Among the more significant and wide-ranging liaison activities has been
our close association with Health Workforce Australia (HWA). PA
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members are active on HWA Advisory Committees, Reference Groups
and within the Future Health Leaders network. PA also has been engaged
with a number of specific projects on Health Workforce Innovation and
Reform including Extending the role of Paramedics, with the HWA
currently funding a number of pilot studies nationally.
The registration agenda has many elements that are intertwined with the
functions of paramedic service delivery. One example is the framing of a
national competency framework.
The potential implementation of a registered profession and the
mechanics of establishing a suitable regulatory board and supporting
infrastructure arrangements will bring further changes to meet the
requirements of the National Law. PA has prepared a summary of the
likely issues requiring determination by any Paramedic Board in the event
that registration is adopted.
The future nature and policing of CPD under AHPRA-like standards is
another important matter to ensure compliance with any mandated CPD
requirements under registration. Work is continuing on assessing the
likely requirements and the current CPD offerings available throughout
Australia from various providers. This work will help inform our future
Continuing Professional Development activities.
If registration under the National Scheme becomes a reality, then PA
hopes to play a suitable role in establishing the necessary infrastructure
for a registration Board and contributing towards other functional
arrangements such as accreditation. Similar professional input may be
feasible if and when paramedic registration becomes part of the New
Zealand regulatory scene under the HPCAA.
Despite the exceptional level of support from the public, professional
bodies and paramedics themselves, there is no guarantee that a
recommendation for registration will be adopted by the Health Ministers
in the immediate future. PA therefore continues to work closely with all
stakeholders to keep them informed and to respond as needed to any
requests for input.
At the time of writing, no firm estimate is offered of a likely timeline for
the consideration of any paramedic registration report and subsequent
Ministerial determination. Recent contact with the project team indicates
that there is unlikely to be any major development until late 2013. In the
meantime PA will continue to deal with issues on the assumption that
Option 4 Registration will be adopted.
Members may rest assured that PA will continue to provide strong
leadership in promoting the development of the profession and in
representing the interests of all practitioners and associated personnel
across the region. It may take some years to achieve the goal of national
registration, but that will come about through the efforts of many, a
constant professional focus and solid groundwork.
Please visit the PA website to remain up to date on developments which
are reported through the website, via Social Media, and through regular
publications such as the Rapid Response electronic newsletter and
Response magazine.
Ray Bange
Principal Policy Advisor

RESPONSE

This past year has been a success for Response. We have seen a
range of article contributions from members and non-members
who have an interest in out-of-hospital medical care. These
contributions have covered a range of topics, including clinical
items, case reports, discussions of points of view, and legal concepts.
Our regular contributions have grown and developed to provide a
broader range of information and ensure coverage of ideas,
concepts and knowledge that is relevant to members.
Student Paramedics Australasia has been a big contributor with an
array of articles and information from the student community. This
has included some great student articles discussing key clinical topics.

always the chance of being awarded the $150 Editor’s Choice
Award!
If you have any suggestions or feedback on Rapid Response please
contact us at: editor@paramedics.org.au
Rapid Response
The eNewsletter, Rapid Response has been consistently delivered
this year to provide members with the latest updates from the
Board, CPD activities and general news relevant to the out-ofhospital community.

We have consistently provided news from employers, the Australian
Resuscitation Council and of course, your local Chapters.

Using this electronic communication has enabled the Board to
promptly deliver the latest news to inboxes, thereby ensuring
that members are kept up to date with the latest opportunities
and activities.

The Board has used Response as a means of communication with
members to provide updates on activities being undertaken at a
corporate level, and also to highlight key initiatives and
opportunities that are relevant to the membership.

Once again, we encourage members to provide feedback on these
activities to ensure that we are meeting your needs.

Our publisher, Emergency Media has continued to provide dedicated
support in the development and printing of Response. I would like
to personally thank them for their commitment to the quality of the
journal and their facilitation in bringing the journal to you.
Thank you also to all of our contributors – without your articles
there would be no journal!
I encourage everyone to submit to Response and have the chance of
publishing your work – sharing your work is sharing knowledge and
professional skills with other like-minded people. And, there is

Board Meetings held / attendance 2012 - 2013 + (in attendance)       A (apology)     x (non attendance)     // (not appointed)
17th Aug 12

1st Nov 12

23rd Nov 12

8th Feb 13

18th Apr 13

R. Brightwell

+

+

+

+

+

M. Davis

+

+

+

+

+

A. Eade

A

+

+

//

//

H. Eyles

+

+

A

+

+

J. Hall

+

+

+

+

+   

		

P. Hartley

//

//

A

+

+

A. Hochberg

A

+

//

+

+

L. Hotchin

+

+

+

+

+

R. Larsen

+

A

A

+

+

M. Lazell

+

+

+

+

+

N. Nott

//

A

A

+

+  

I. Patrick

+

+

+

+

+   

J. Richardson

+

A

+

+

+

G. Strong

//

//

//

//

+
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RURAL & REMOTE

The interests of paramedics living and working in rural and remote
areas of Australia have continued to be supported by the activities
of Paramedics Australasia’s Rural and Remote Special Interest Group.
Professor Peter O’Meara continues to do great work and engender
robust debate as the website moderator. The R&R SIG provides a
ready source of information and advice to all members as well as
those with a particular concern for the unique needs of rural and
remote communities. This information can be found at
http://ruralremote.acap.org.au/
Paramedics Australasia is one of the member bodies of the National
Rural Health Alliance. I have the privilege of representing the
interest of Paramedics on this council. The National Rural Health
Alliance is Australia’s peak non-government organisation for rural
and remote health. Its vision is good health and wellbeing in rural
and remote Australia and it has set itself the specific goal of equal
health by the year 2020.
Fundamental to the Alliance’s work is the belief that, wherever they
live, all Australians should have the opportunity for equal health
outcomes, and equivalent access to comprehensive, highquality and appropriate health services. In 2012-13 the Alliance
comprised 33 Member Bodies, each of which is a national
organisation. They include consumer groups (such as the Country
Women’s Association of Australia), representation from the
Indigenous health sector, health professional organisations
(representing paramedics, doctors, nurses, allied health
professionals, dentists, pharmacists , health students, health service
managers and chiropractors) and service providers (such as the
Royal Flying Doctor Service, the Rural Hospitals Forum of Catholic
Health Australia, the Rural Health Education Foundation, and
Frontier Services of the Uniting Church in Australia).
Their website is http://www.ruralhealth.org.au/
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The National Rural Health Conference is the largest regular public
event on the agenda of those interested in improving health and
wellbeing in rural and remote Australia. The biennial Conference is
the NRHA’s biggest project, it is a key element of its core business
and sets much of the agenda for the Alliance’s work for each
two-year period. It has become a key part of the agenda-forming
process for the rural and remote health sector as a whole.
The 12th National Rural Health Conference was held in Adelaide in
April and it was pleasing to see Paramedics Australasia’s members
attending. This resulted with Paramedics having input into of the
agenda-forming process for the rural and remote health sector
of Australia.
While the SIG is alive and well, it will benefit from a greater level
of participation by all practitioners and not just the rural cohort.
We thus look forward to a heightened level of engagement by all
members in the company year to help fulfil the growing influence
of the paramedic profession in helping to shape health policy
and practices.
John Richardson

CONFERENCE REVIEW

Review of the current format of the PA international conference
commenced earlier this year. The board requested the conference
format be analysed and benchmarked against other models to see if
improvements could be made to better respond to members needs
and expectations.
The current conference format centres around:
• 2 day format
• Optional pre conference workshops
• Presentation of free research papers ( peer reviewed)
• International speakers and domestic speakers
• Plenary sessions of approx 30-60 min of topics of relevant to
the field of paramedicine
• Shorter sessions streamed according to specialty ( eg, clinical,
management, education)
• Trade displays
• Formal conference dinner/ event.

The feedback received has guided the creation and formation of a
survey that will be released to PA members and interested
paramedics and employers shortly to complete.
Compiling this survey information will form the basis for the PA
international conference report. It is currently anticipated any
significant alterations to the format will commence as of the 2015
PA conference.

The review was to be member driven so began with an email that
went out to all financial members (as per their listed web address)
to gain initial feel for attendees impressions.
Suggestions to guide the initial direction included but are not
limited to:
• Cost
• Duration
• Content
• Target groups
• Organising committees ( including organising, payment and
notification mechanisms, selection of content)
• Inclusion of Workshops or clinical skill sessions
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CHAPTER / BRANCH REPORTS

ACT Chapter

NT Chapter

Currently the ACT Chapter is in recess due to being unable to form
an ongoing committee at its ACM in January.

Currently the NT Chapter is in recess due to being unable to
maintain a Chapter committee at the 2012 Annual Chapter
Meeting.

The PA Executive will be taking steps shortly to remedy this.
The PA Executive will be taking steps shortly to remedy this.
Thanks go to the acting secretary, Joshua Mundy, for maintaining
a communication link with for the Chapter.
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Thanks go to the secretary, Amanda McNeill, for maintaining
a communication link with the Chapter.

CHAPTER / BRANCH REPORTS

New Zealand
It gives me great pleasure to present the second annual report for
the New Zealand Chapter to the National AGM of Paramedics
Australasia. While we are still in our infancy we are experiencing
slow but regular growth as we find our feet.
Committee
Our Annual Chapter Meeting was held in Wellington in March. We
were privileged to have Ian Patrick and Richard Larsen fly across the
Tasman to attend the meeting. They were able to assist us in the
promotion of PA in New Zealand including a meeting with Diana
Crossan, the Wellington Free Ambulance CEO and a teleconference
with Peter Bradley the St John Ambulance CEO.
We welcomed onto the committee Haydn Drake who has been
remarkable with his social media skills. He has assisted Sean
Thompson with the IT side of our marketing and information
dissemination. Sarah Werner has stepped down from the role of
Secretary and this position has been filled by Howard Wills. Thank
you to Sarah for her enormous contribution to PANZ as its inaugural
secretary. Sarah has returned to further studies this year but has
agreed to stay on as a committee member.
We were recently competently represented by Haydn Drake and
Rachael Wallen at the Readers Digest most trusted profession
awards in Auckland in August. This was an occasion where publicity
for us was very beneficial as representatives of our profession.
Rachael has recently agreed to act as our Student Liaison Officer
and keep in touch with the SPA groups at Whitireia and AUT. We
are delighted to welcome Rachael to the committee.
Membership
Our membership is 162 members and at the time of writing this
report which includes both MPA and SPA members, but through
the use of social media and organized CPD events we continue to
increase our membership numbers. We are always striving to use
new and innovative ways to assist our growth. Our budget for the
next financial year has set a target of 80 MPA members which we
feel is very achievable.
SPA
SPA has been more active this year at both the AUT campus in
Auckland and at Whitireia campus in Wellington forming SPA groups.
Student leaders have taken up the challenge at both campuses to
promote PA and we envisage future growth in this area.
Financial
Our first budget was prepared by our Treasurer John Hammond
with the assistance of committee members and shows a small surplus.
The committee has agreed to retain our reasonably priced start up
membership fee to assist membership growth in these early days.

scheduled for early September in Christchurch with a presentation
by Dr David Richards on Orthopaedic emergencies. Our final CPD
event has been scheduled for late November and will be held in
Wellington.
Many thanks to Laerdal New Zealand, for their sponsorship and
assistance at our CPD events. We have had the use of their manikins
to hold CPR challenges at each CPD event which has added to the
enthusiasm of the night. We have meet many challenges in the
organization of these events but will make significant progress in
the future to streamline how we deliver CPD in New Zealand.
Registration
There have been few developments in our registration of recent
times. PANZ submitted to the review of the Health Practitioners
Competence Assurance Act, a review that is largely focused on
reducing the cost and complexity of the current regulatory situation.
Health Workforce New Zealand (HWNZ) is now preparing advice for
the Minister of Health, which will make recommendations on
proposals about legislative changes to the Act. Following the
Minister’s decisions about HWNZ’s advice, a Cabinet paper will be
prepared seeking agreement to any legislative change.
All this means that the paramedic profession’s application for
regulation is still on the back burner, where it has sat for almost two
years.  With elections next year the progress of the application may
lose out to other more election winning legislation. Watch this space.
Conferences
This year, PANZ will sponsor two committee members to attend the
PA Annual Conference in Canberra. We have also advertised two
scholarships to also enable PANZ members to also attend this
noteworthy event. The committee considers that it is important to not
only have representation, but to also enable the future of our profession
to have the opportunity to learn and network at this vital level.
Strategic Direction and the Future
Gary Strong and I meet with Peter Bradley and Michael Brooke from
St John in Auckland in July and found them to be very receptive to
PANZ. We feel that this will be positive liaison in the future and will
have many added benefits for PANZ. The committee aims to continue
to build our associations and presence in New Zealand and to be
seen as the voice for Paramedics in New Zealand.
I would like to take this opportunity to thank all of the New Zealand
Chapter committee members for their contribution in the last year.
It has been as a group that we have been able to achieve everything
we have set out to do for this year. Special thanks to Gary Strong on
the Board for his guidance and assistance.
Sharon Duthie Chair
Paramedics Australasia New Zealand Chapter

Professional Development and CPD events
This year we have prioritized holding CPD events around our
country as an important part of our Chapters work in New Zealand.
Our first event was held in Auckland at AUT’s North Shore Campus.
Special thanks to Gary Strong for his presentation on Increasing out
of hospital Cardiac Arrest Survival rates. The second event is
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Queensland Chapter
Over the past 12 months we have run an extremely successful one
day conference in Townsville as well as the Gold Coast and we will
be running another in Cairns this September. These events are
proving popular and we intend to run them in the South East and
the North of the state each year to ensure that our members have
access to high quality educational opportunities from high class
presenters no matter what part of the state they come from.
Our membership is continuing to rise and we are always looking at
ways to increase that through any means available to the chapter as
a whole. We currently enjoy a good working relationship with the
Queensland Ambulance Service and we look forward to
strengthening that in the months and years to come. We are
starting to develop working relationship with the many private and
industry based providers of Paramedic Services who number around
120 across the country of which 30 plus are Qld based, this work
will need to continue as these providers do and will provide
employment opportunities for paramedics for many years to come.
An exciting innovation which QLD undertook over the past 12
months was to be the chapter which developed, produced and put
into production the first ever smartphone app for both Android and
iPhone platforms for PA. That has now been completed and the app
is now available to be downloaded by anyone free of charge and
has totally changed the way in which people have access to PA not
only locally but also Internationally as well. And this fantastic new
innovation for PA ensures that all of our members etc. have up to
the minute live access to PA not matter where they find themselves.
We have also continued to work on developing our ties
internationally and we are through our national board
representation endeavouring to enable our friends and colleagues
from Singapore to start a sub chapter of Qld as a starting point and
eventually becoming a chapter of its own which will truly establish
PA as a powerful Paramedic representative group through the Asia
Pacific region.
As we are all aware we are currently living in a live minute by
minute environment thanks to the huge interest in social media
and to ensure that we stay in touch with this boom area of
communications and dissemination of information we have been
working to ensure that we are heavily involved in this area and we
are constantly working on our web page, Facebook and twitter
groups to ensure that we are always out there. Over the coming
months our national and local web pages etc. will undergo a major
overhaul making them easier to navigate and allow or members to
easier access things like e learning along with journals and other
useful educational tools, and with this all linked into the new
phone app it will ensure that we continue to further our electronic
and technological reach keeping us in constant contact with
ur members.
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We have over the past 12 months given to our members funding to
attend both the national and students national conferences and we
continue to be partnered with the KJM awards and various other
programs which include local Qld universities to ensure that
excellence in paramedic education and training is rewarded and we
will continue to do this into the foreseeable future. And as part of
that we are extremely humbled to have been asked to be the host
state for the 2014 national PA conference which will be held on the
beautiful Gold Coast in September 2014 an event which attracts a
lot of interest both nationally and internationally alike.
As we move forward over the coming 12 months we will continue
to ensure that our members needs are meet and that we continue
to be involved heavily with Paramedic interest groups and forums
which will determine paramedic practice into the future and also
play a leading role in the development and implementation of the
long awaited introduction of paramedic registration program.
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SA Chapter
This financial year once again saw increased activity within the SA
chapter with regards to CPDs, sponsorships, scholarships, awards
and support to the chapter’s membership. The ongoing success of
the SA chapter would not have been possible without the ongoing
commitment by not only the SA chapter committee, the Flinders
University Student Paramedic Association (FUSPA) committee but
also the support shown and provided where possible by the South
Australian Ambulance Service. I would like to acknowledge the
effort and support of all parties over the past year.
Conferences and Seminars
This financial year has seen a number of very successful seminars
and clinical evenings, which due to the quality of guest speakers
and subject matter, saw the maximum number of attendees for the
venues, reached well before the closing date. The SA chapter was
also the first chapter to use the new PA eLearning website as a way
for PA members to register to attend a CPD event. The CPD events
included:
Dr Tim Wolfe, the inventor of the MAD to talk about the thoughts,
the reasons, and the concept behind developing the MAD, a jointly
sponsored evening with the Defence Health Triumvirate on the
“Human Factors in Aviation and Medicine” and the “Changing Face
of Disease, Challenges for the Paramedic” was presented by Dr
Doug Shaw from the Communicable Disease Control Branch, SA
Health which was videoed and has been edited and loaded onto
the eLearning website as an interactive session for all PA members
to access and gain valuable CPD points. One of 2 annual Journal
Clubs was also held and the topic was presented by Professor Russel
Gruen - Professor of Surgery and Public Health at Monash
University, trauma surgeon at The Alfred, and Director of the
National Trauma Research Institute on “tranexamic acid”. This
journal club proved to be very popular and was teleconferenced to
a number of regional areas for SA members to access.
The ongoing development of relationships with allied health
organisations has continued with the ongoing interaction with
CENA to allow PA members access to CENA CPD activities and CENA
members to access PA CPD events. A more recent relationship with
Flinders University saw the co badging of a number of Tutor
Development Workshops. These workshops are designed for those
people who are tutors to the new paramedic students or wish to
become tutors.
Sponsorships
SA has continued to offer a variety of sponsorships to various
clinical events around Australia. These included 8 positions to
attend the Adelaide Women’s and Children’s Hospital’s Annual
Paediatric Emergency and Trauma Day and 3 x $1000 sponsorships
to attend the PA National Conference in Hobart. SA rural and
remote members were also lucky to receive a number of SARRAH
scholarships over the last financial year.
Rod Kershaw ASM Scholarship
The Rod Kershaw ASM Scholarship is a joint sponsorship between
Paramedics Australasia and the SA Ambulance Service (SAAS). The
scholarship provides up to $7000 for the recipient to research a
current or new idea that will have a potential benefit to both

paramedics and SAAS. This year there were 3 applicants, each
application was considered by the Rod Kershaw ASM Scholarship
committee comprising a member of SAAS, a PA SA committee
member and a PA national representative. Following the review of
the applications and an interview, the scholarship was awarded to
Angela Evans, a paramedic from Gawler. Angela will visit, collect
data and research a number of community care models as part of
her Remote Area Paramedic Project which she is currently working
on. Angela will travel to Canada and to the USA where they have in
place community care systems run by paramedics and nurses who
often work side by side.
SA Paramedics Australasia Awards
This year at the Flinders University School of Medicine inaugural
student prize and award ceremony, PA SA presented two awards to
paramedic graduates from 2012. These annual awards recognise
excellence in student performance in two key areas; research and
clinical competence. The Paramedics Australasia Prize for Research
Excellence is awarded to the paramedic student who achieves the
highest aggregate grade for the two research topics; Qualitative
Methods of Social Health Research and Quantitative Methods of
Social Health Research. This was awarded to Victoria Vabolis. The
Russell Liston Award for Clinical Excellence is awarded to the
student who receives the highest consistent performance in clinical
placement reporting and in their clinical performance on campus
during third year. The recipient of this inaugural awarded was
Bianca Hillier. We were very fortunate to have the late Russell
Liston’s father, Mr Brian Liston, at the ceremony to present the
award to Bianca. Both students received a certificate, one year
membership to PA and a $250 Elsevier book voucher.
Flinders University Student Paramedic Association (FUSPA)
For a number of years FUSPA has had representation on the SA
chapter committee, this has lead to a collaborative effort to provide
the students with a variety of opportunities to increase their
understanding of the pre hospital care environment and increase
skills and knowledge outside of the university environment. Over the
last 12 months FUSPA have participated in a number of challenging
activities including overnight trauma manoeuvres with the army
cadets in the Adelaide Hills and competing in the annual
“emergency medical challenge”. The quality of the FUSPA team
came to light when they were beaten by only 2 points by the
Adelaide University Surgical Society. It is encouraging to see the
commitment that FUSPA show to their education and development.
Awards
The SA chapter this year introduced an award to recognise those
who continually support PA SA and / or FUSPA in the development
of the paramedic profession. This year the SA chapter presented the
award to 5 individuals or groups for their outstanding effort, the
award is not limited to PA members or those in the medical or allied
health fraternity.
Membership
The SA membership continues to grow with 544 members, an
increase of 58 members from last year and 172 FUSPA members,
up 19 from last year.
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Finances
The SA chapter finished the 2012/2013 financial year within its
predicted budget.  The budget for financial year 2013/2014 has
been submitted to the national treasurer for approval.
Strategic Direction and the Future
The SA chapter will continue to offer and expand its CPD program
with increased teleconferencing to rural and remote areas for the
larger CPD events, to record all CPD events when permission is
granted from the presenter and upload onto the PA eLearning for
members to access at a later date. The chapter will continue to
increase its support of FUSPA, sponsorships to allied health and PA
events and increase its involvement with allied health services in the
areas of joint CPD events and conferences.
The national registration debate is a key focus for not only PA
nationally but also the SA chapter, with this in mind the SA chapter
will continue to support all efforts for paramedic registration and
continue to have open dialogue with those parties, both local and
national, who will play a key role in our future.
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Committee
Each year at our Annual Chapter Meeting (ACM) a number of
committee members resign and other PA members step into the
vacated positions. I would like to thank all past and present
committee members for the time and effort that they commit to the
running of the chapter and the services they provide to the SA
memebership.
Cliff Collett FPA
Chair
Paramedics Australasia SA Chapter
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Tasmania Chapter
2012-13 was a busy year for Paramedics Australasia Tasmania with
the major focus the hosting of the PA National Conference in
Hobart last November.
This event was a tremendous success with a list of great presenters
both “experts” in their fields but equally qualified and student
paramedics presenting interesting and exciting research as well as
great camaraderie between delegates.
The Wrest Point Casio sitting on the beautiful Derwent River is a
fantastic venue and the venues staff and management could not
have been more helpful. For this conference the committee enlisted
the help of a number of UTas Spa students who ensured the
program stayed on time.

- Advance Life Support Obstetrics (Be A Breech Expert)
- PA National Conference
- Mental Health First Aid
The Sir Basil Osborne Award
Was this year jointly awarded to Sheree Templar and Tessa Campin
and included registration fees to the National Conference and
assistance with travel to Canberra.
Representation
The executive has been involved in a number of organisations
representing ACAP Tasmania members over the past year.
• Tasmanian Ambulance Clinical Council
• Australian Resuscitation Council

No Conference runs by itself and great credit goes to the organising
committee especially Les Hotchin and John Hall for their tireless
work ensuring a valuable and enjoyable scientific conference.
PA Tas wishes PA ACT and the organising committee all the best as
they host Conference 2013.

• PA National Management Committee

PA Tas has this year continued its strong focus on two key areas,
recruitment of members and providing members with professional
development opportunities.

Finally on behalf of the members of PATas I would like to thanks
both the National Board for their continued efforts especially on
lobbying for National Recognition and Registration and the PATas
executive committee for their work in continuing the smooth and
successful running of PATas.

Membership
2012-13 has seen a continual expansion of Ambulance Tasmania
with employment of both qualified paramedics and graduate
interns. PA Tas has continued to successfully espouse the benefits of
membership in our Professional Organisation recruiting a high
percentage of these new staff.

• PA National Board
• Quarterly meetings with Ambulance Tasmania CEO

The members of both of these committees do so in a voluntary
capacity and put in significant amounts of both time and energy
and again I thank them.

Members of the executive were also tasked with approaching
non-members across the state and ensuring that they were aware
of the benefits in PA membership.
Congratulations for this effort particularly to membership
coordinator Catherine Skirving for PATas.
Professional Development (PD)
The continual growth in membership of PATas, the continued
support from Calvary Private Hospital and UTas combined with the
increased income generated from the increased membership fees
has allowed PATas to continue to expand its PD program in 2013.
• Post Grad Research Study Bursary was this year awarded to
Simone Haigh. This bursary is awarded to research Masters 		
Candidate each year and is awarded in cooperation with UTas
and Calvary Health.
• Subsides have been given to members this year to attend the
following PD programs:
ARC Spark of life Conference
- Royal Hobart Burns Study Day
- Early Management of Severe Burns
- Advanced Paediatric Life Support
- Paediatric Life Support
- Early Management of Severe Trauma
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Victorian Chapter

WA Chapter

I am pleased to be able to present the 2013 Victorian Chapter
Chairman’s Report.

The WA Chapter key performance indicators for the past year have been to
increase membership activity; provide quality continuing professional
development (CPD), and promote paramedic national registration. I am
extremely pleased to announce, this financial year saw an increased activity
in all areas.

Over the past 12 months professional development of our
members has continued to be a major focus. This included
overseas travel grants awarded to two members to attend and
present their research findings at international conferences, and
to undertake internationally renowned educational programs.
Funding support was also provided for a range of research
grants and sponsorship to allow members to attend the
Paramedics Australasia International Conference in Canberra and
other local conferences and workshops. The regular Education
Sessions have remained popular with members this year and
continued to be well attended.
This year we have seen the Chapter sponsored ‘Job of the
Month’ recognition program continue. To date, over 50
Victorian Members have been recognised by the College
and their peers as having provided ‘exceptional’ care to
their community.
Members of the Chapter Executive have been actively involved
in assisting with the PA National Conference, and again we look
forward to providing several grants to assist our members in
attending the conference.
I would like to thank all members of the Chapter Executive for
their tireless effort and support during 2013. We look forward
to an exciting and successful 2014.
Dr Paul Jennings FPA
Chairman, Victorian Chapter
Paramedics Australasia

The WA membership has continued to grow over this period. With the wide
diversity of paramedic employment opportunities within Western Australia, it
is excellent to see there has been an increase in State Ambulance Service and
private sector paramedic membership. This allows our Chapter to fully
represent its membership body so that CPD and the state ‘paramedic voice’
can be represented at all levels. In addition, Western Australian Student
Paramedics (WASP) membership continues to grow. The support of new
graduates not only provides an important boost of enthusiasm to our
Chapter, but ensures the future membership of Paramedics Australia (PA)
and, at some point, representation of the future WA Chapter. Without
doubt, this must be seen as a positive factor in the growth of PA at a local
and national level.
2012/2013 proved to be very successful with the provision of a number of
CPD events and seminars.  These events were extremely popular and well
supported by our members. The very success of these events lay in the
quality and professionalism of the guest speakers and the wide variety of
relevant paramedic subject material. Importantly, we have managed to offer
full and half day CPD events, as well as shorter sessions to meet the demand
and education needs of our members. In addition, to our standard CPD
activities, the inclusion of WSP to our local committee has enabled additional
CPD and joint training opportunities for both students and qualified
paramedics.  We will continue to deliver quality sessions, with the aim to
further increase the number of CPD sessions, as well as increase the access
and availability of sessions to rural and remote areas. CPD events have been
highlighted by WA members as a priority, and the WA committee continues
to form working sub-committee groups to assist with the planning and
execution of regular CPD events.  With the support and continued
development of such groups, we aim to provide members with multiple CPD
opportunities and ideally be in a position to run events every two weeks by
2014.  Consequently, the WA Chapter encourages its members to get
actively involved by joining a relevant sub-committee of their interest.
Finally, the WA Chapter also continues to support the National PA
Conference, and sponsored a number of members to the 2012 Hobart
conference. Further, WA Chapter has already selected four members to
attend the 2013 National conference in Canberra. Importantly, we have
further plans to increase this number in 2014, as well as increase our
commitment in supporting the SPA conference over the coming years.
The ongoing success of the WA Chapter is not possible without the
continued support of the WA Chapter committee, Richard Brightwell, and
the WASP committee representatives. I would like to acknowledge their
efforts over the past year, and thank them all for their help and support. I
would also like to thank the WA Chapter members for their support and
involvement with PA at a local and national level. I believe the future of
paramedicine lies in the hands of PA members. Your enthusiasm for
paramedic enhancement through CPD and registration will not only ensure
the growth of PA, but ensure the role and responsibilities of the paramedic
are recognised in line with other registered healthcare professionals.
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Andy Symons
WA Chapter
Paramedics Australasia
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Richard Brightwell MPA
Director

Michael John (Mick) Davis AM, ASM – FPA,, LMPA, FCHSM,
FAIES, MBA, Grad. Dip. Mgt., BBus. Treasurer/Director

Associate Professor Richard Brightwell: Coordinator of Paramedical
Science and Preventative Medicine, Edith Cowan University; BSc,
PhD. Associate Professor Brightwell developed the Paramedic degree
programs at Edith Cowan University. He has taught health
professionals anatomy and physiology throughout his career. He is a
national board member of the Australasian College of Ambulance
professionals and a former chair of the Network of Australasian
Paramedic Academics. He sits on the Paramedic Education Program
Accreditation Committee, which is establishing an accreditation
process for Australasian Paramedic programs. Associate Professor
Brightwell was team member in a ALTC DBI project on Paramedic
education: developing depth through networks and evidence-based
research, 2007. Grants include: 2005 Carrick Institute for Learning
and Teaching in Higher Education, Australian Government. Online
Assessment as an Instrument of Reflective Practice in Learning in
Human Biology; 2007 ECU industry collaboration grant with SJA,
Patient outcome affected by paramedic pre-hospital treatment of
patients with severe brain injuries; and 2010 WA State Health
Research Advisory Council (SHRAC), Paramedic Assessment and
Referral to Access MEDical care at Home: a randomised trial.

As a Director of PA, Mick is also currently the National and Queensland Chapter
Treasurers, roles that he has now held for some years. As National Treasurer of
PA, he is also Chair of the Finance Standing Committee. He joined the then
Institute of Ambulance Officers (Aust.) in 1973 and was elected to State
Branch Council in 1975. He has served on the Qld Committee since that time
including in the roles of Qld Secretary, Chairman and Treasurer. Mick served as
as the Institute national vice President, President and as ACAP and PA Treasurer.
He was first elected to National Council (as it was then called) in 1981.
Mick has extensive experience in the application of contemporary corporate
governance principles and has coached many new national directors on this
subject. Along with Les Hotchin, and Allen Marr, he contributed to the
constitution drafting and preparation of the Institute to become a “College”
and a public company in August 2000. Mick has led task groups in other
organizations in the development of contemporary constitutions and rules.
He also has extensive experience in convening national and international
conferences and specialized education events.
Mick has 49 years-experience in ambulance service delivery in both state
administration and regional operations. He began his ambulance career in
Rockhampton (Qld.) as an Honorary Officer in 1964 and was appointed to
the permanent staff in 1969.
Mick has served in road and air ambulance operations, in training, special projects,
and in supervisory and senior management roles including Acting Assistant
Commissioner, District Superintendent, Superintendent Planning & Personnel (GBR),
State Manager Staff Development and Manager Workplace Health & Safety and
Heritage & History in QAS - leading many innovative changes. He is currently
Deputy Chairman and Treasurer of the Kenneth James McPherson Education &
Research Foundation - a controlled entity of the Queensland Ambulance Service.
In 1973, Mick became a member of The Institute of Ambulance Officers
(Australia) and was elected to the Qld. Division Executive in 1975. Since
1975 he has held senior positions in many other organizations (3 of which
are now public companies where he serves or has served as a director). He
has also Chaired many Association and Company sub-Committees. He is
currently serving as Qld Division immediate Past President and is a past
Director on the General Council of the Aust Institute of Emergency Services
and a Life fellow of that Institute.
Mick was recently also a Director on the National Board of the Order of
Australia Association, past Qld Branch Chairman and current Queensland
Committee Member of the Association. He is currently a Director and
Treasurer on the Board of the Health and Community Services Workforce
Council having now served on that Board for 13 years.
Mick was appointed “Member” (AM) of the Order of Australia in June 2000
for his services to the Australian College of Ambulance Professionals and to
ambulance education and training at national and state levels. In the
Queens Birthday Honours in 2012 Mick was awarded the Ambulance
Service Medal (ASM) for his distinguished ambulance and community
service. In December 2012 he was awarded the Surgeon-General John
White Medal for services to Health in its various forms.
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Cliff Collett

Helen Eyles MPA

Cliff joined the RAAF in 1980 as a trade’s apprentice and was
posted to RAAF Base Edinburgh. In 1989 he resigned from the
permanent Airforce and joined the Airforce reserves. In 1992
he ventured overseas and between trips, he worked in London
in the travel industry for 5 years.

Helen has been a paramedic since 1995 and has worked in both
ASNSW and in Queensland Ambulance. She had the privilege of
working as lecturer at QUT to develop the undergraduate paramedic
degree and is a critical care nurse, but now chooses to work in a
dynamic and unpredictable environment on road in rural
Queensland.

He joined the SA Ambulance Service (SAAS) in 2000 completing
his Diploma in Applied Science (Ambulance Studies) in December
2002. In 2005 he qualified as an ICP and also completed his
Bachelor of Clinical Practice (Paramedics). During his time in SAAS
he has worked as a relieving team leader, as a SPRINT paramedic
and received the CEO commendation award in 2008. In 2004
Cliff joined the PA SA committee and held the positions of
chapter treasurer from 2008 – 2011 and chapter chair from
2009 until present.

Helen has been an educator and is committed to facilitating
professional development opportunities specific to paramedicine.
She is part of the scientific committee for the PA National conference
and is convenor for the PARQ conferences in QLD. Helen is a strong
supporter for the registration of paramedics at a National level,
consulting with Ray Bange and offering her support to Richard
Brightwell to help develop CAP. She is currently committed to the ideal
of developing a continuum of care model to optimise the patients’
return to the community.

Sharon Duthie
I am an Intensive Care Paramedic and Operations Team Manager
based in Timaru, South Canterbury, New Zealand. When I am not
at work, I can be found helping out on our sheep farm or weather
permitting out on the golf course.
I have been with St John Ambulance for the last 18 years. I began
as a volunteer in a small country town which enabled me to
complete my initial training before going onto to obtain my
Bachelor Health Science – Paramedic from Auckland University of
Technology (AUT). I also undertook some post graduate study in
Emergency Management at AUT.
Several years ago I was privileged to attend an ACAP conference in
Melbourne. It was here that I was introduced to an international
group of like minded Paramedics who were interested in research
activities, broadening their knowledge base and some socializing.  
I am excited to be part of the new New Zealand branch of
Paramedic Australasia as the inaugural Chair. It has not been easy
sailing, but with time I am sure that we will become an effective
chapter and worthy of our inclusion. We have a strong committee
who are committed to our evolution and we look forward to our
new endeavor with PA.
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John Hall LMPA
Membership Registrar, Director
John has completed over 42 years with the ASNSW. Having
completed the ASNSW paramedic training program in 1978, he
served for 30 years as a Paramedic. Obtaining the positions of
Station Manager, State Manager of Quality Assurance and District
Inspector. John was involved with the introduction of defibrillators
into the ASNSW. Having reported on the success of this venture,
he co-authored several papers and has presented at conferences
in Australia and the USA. John has been involved with many of
the major events and incidents in the Sydney region including the
Olympic Games. John Retired from the ASNSW in 2008.
Joining the College in 1987, he quickly became involved with the
Response Journal as the NSW State Editor. Taking over as National
Editor of Response in 1991, he served the College in this position
until 2002.  John has been a Councillor/Committee member/
Director of the NSW Branch 1990 – 2009.
John has represented Paramedic Australasia on the Australian
Resuscitation Council from 1994-2011 in several capacities; he
retired from the Council in 2011 as an ARC Executive Committee
Member and Secretary/Treasurer.
John is currently the Membership Registrar, Member of the
Conference Organising and Scientific Committees and a member
of the Finance and Audit Committee. John was honoured with Life
Membership in 2007.
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Assoc Prof Peter Hartley
Peter Hartley is Associate Professor and the Director of Learning
and Teaching at Victoria University within the College of Health and
Biomedicine. He has a multi-discipline background in health, sociology,
education, and had over 27 years ambulance experience in Australia.
He commenced his ambulance career with the Metropolitan
Ambulance Service in 1986 and has worked as a paramedic in
both metropolitan and rural locations. Peter has a long history as a
paramedic academic lecturing in the discipline both nationally and
internationally for twenty years, and has delivered numerous papers
and courses throughout Canada, United States, and Europe.
His current commitment is focused on the advancement of
paramedicine’s recognition as a professional entity, working
towards national registration, and national curriculum, whilst
working towards national credentialing of paramedics providing
greater access for cross border recognition and transition.
Peter has completed his PhD focusing on Cultural and Religious
aspects of paramedic care and is member of a number of
international and national professional bodies.

Les Hotchin FPA LMPA
Director
Secretary
After commencing as a volunteer in 1963, Les was employed by
Ambulance Service Victoria in Ballarat as a full-time ambulance
officer in 1965.
During his 36 years with the ambulance service Les worked as
an on road officer and in the areas of communications, training,
supervision and management, finishing his career in 1999 as the
CEO of Ambulance Service Victoria – Western Region.
Les was a member of the ASV Board of Studies during the
development and introduction of the Certificate of Applied Science
(Ambulance Officer) course in 1978. He was also a member of
the Ambulance Officers Training Centre Board of Management at
the time the decision was taken to outsource ambulance officer
education to Monash University.
Les was an inaugural member of the Victoria Branch of the
Australian College of Ambulance Professionals in 1973, became
a committee member in 1974 and a Councillor in 1981, continuing
in this position until 2000. Les held, at one time or another, all
executive positions on the Victoria Branch. During this period
- from 1989 to 1992 - he served as National President.
Les was appointed to the position of National Secretary of the
College in 2000.

Assoc Prof Dr Tony Hochberg
Prof Hochberg works full time as a Medical Practitioner specialising
in General Practice (FRACGP; FRNZCGP; Occupational Medicine
(FRCPI) and Aviation Medicine (FACAsM) since 1984.
Prof Hochberg’s current role is with International SOS as Regional
Medical Director Australasia and involves cross border work into
PNG and Pacific in delivering medical services. Prof Hochberg is
responsible for a broad range of activities including quality
assurance; audit; training, mentoring, client liaison and senior
management advice on a variety of projects / contracts across
Australia and internationally.
Prof Hochberg’s current employment also involves the supervision
and training of paramedics at mining and offshore sites across
Australasia.
Prof Hochberg has held in excess of 30 consultative positions with
various industries and organizations.
Professor Hochberg has a part time (5 hrs per week) appointment
as Professor at the School of Medical Sciences at Edith Cowan
University teaching Aviation Medicine and Occupational Medicine.

Richard Larsen FPA
Richard commenced his paramedic career in 1991 with SA
Ambulance Service (or St John Ambulance Service – SA at the time)
following working as a volunteer ambulance officer. Richard is
currently an Intensive Care Paramedic with SA Ambulance Service
and has previously worked in a variety of metropolitan and country
based roles including clinical practice, management, education and
communications.
Richard has been a member of the PA (and its previous iterations)
since 1991 and has been on the National Board since 2008. During
this time Richard has been actively involved in the support of
paramedicine related research activities, the PA restructure process,
national paramedic registration agenda, introduction of the PA
e-learning system and the Paramedic Education Program
Accreditation Committee.
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Michael (Mick) Lazell MPA

Ian Patrick ASM FPA MAICD

Mick started as a cadet ambulance officer in March 1980 and has
flown in planes and helicopters to deliver pre hospital care in the
since then. Mick presently is working in Townsville as the Regional
Communications Manager for the Northern region.

Ian Patrick is President of Paramedics Australasia. He also holds the
honorary position of Adjunct Professor at Edith Cowen University
Perth WA. Ian has held many senior positions in the Victorian
Ambulance Service including General Manager Emergency
Operations. Other positions include Director, MAS - Monash
University Translational research unit and Executive Director
Organisational Services of Rural Ambulance.

Mick started as a member of the Institute of Ambulance Officers
and has been an advocate of self initiated learning for paramedics.
Mick is a strong advocate for the roll of the paramedic in the
delivery of primary health care and is convinced that the care that
started with the paramedics goes a long way to helping various
health departments around the nation claim the reduction in
patient bed days as their own. He has also contributed to the
national debate on registration with attendance at the Northern
Territory registration forum.

He has been consulting nationally and in the Middle East, and has
recently been appointed as the Director of the Emergency Retrieval
and Referral Service at the Royal Children’s Hospital Melbourne.
Ian has been the driving force behind Paramedics Australasia
positioning itself as the pre-eminent voice of paramedics
nationally and has been invited to represent PA on many
high level committees.

Nicole Nott
Nicole Nott is a Registered Occupational Therapist and Owner/
Director of Sitemed, a provider of out of hospital medical and
emergency response services.
Nicole is a previous Board Member of OT Australia National
(professional association of Occupational Therapists) having served
on the board during a period of change as the organisation
transitioned from a federated structure to a national structure.
Nicole has been invokable in advocating for Occupational Therapist
registration which occurred nationally in 2012.
Nicole is committed to assisting Paramedics Australasia to being
recognised as the peak body representing Paramedics in the region,
advocating for registration of the profession and ensuring a high
level of governance of the organisation.
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John Richardson
I am a 55 year old Married man based in the NW of Tasmania; I
have been an Intensive care paramedic for approximately 29 years
and have held many positions within Ambulance Tasmania including
State Branch Relief Officer, Clinical Instructor and Clinical Support
Officer. During my career I have acted into many senior roles within
the organisation, including operational and educational.
I have 10 years experience in senior director roles, including
president of the Ambulance Employees Sub Branch of the Health
and Community Services Union, and national executive board
member for the Health Services Union.
I have been actively involved with Paramedics Australasia during the
whole of my ambulance career and am passionate about the
ongoing development and recognition of Para-medicine as a health
profession. I feel that it is essential that smaller states are well
represented on the national board and believe that my experience
qualifies me to represent all members of Paramedics Australia.
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Gary Strong

Andy Symons MPA

Gary has been Programme Leader for Bachelor of Health Science
Paramedic at Whitireia New Zealand for the past two years. After
a career as a paramedic in the UK which included a two year stint
on a motorcycle, he became an in-service educator and later the
Paramedic Clinical Lead for the Great Western Ambulance Service.
In 2009 he moved to New Zealand to take up the post of Education
and Training Manager with Wellington Free Ambulance.

I am a qualified Paramedic and educator with extensive experience.
In addition to my experience as a Critical Care Paramedic and
Intensive Care Aeromedical Paramedic, I offer sixteen years’
experience in Paramedical tertiary education. My expertise has been
recognised not only in Paramedicine but also in the medical field of
resuscitation, where I sit on the Australian and UK Resuscitation
local committees.

As a manager at WFA he saw the potential for tertiary education
to make a big contribution to the professionalisation of paramedic
practice in New Zealand, and took up his current post at Whitireia
in 2011 when the opportunity arose.

I have a specialist international reputation in resuscitation;
coordinating, directing and instructing on Advanced Life Support,
Prehospital Trauma Life Support, Emergency Management of Severe
Burns, and Paediatric Advanced Life Support courses across
Australia, England, Wales, Scotland, Spain and Italy. In this context,
my teaching expertise has been acknowledged as I am the only
non-medical practitioner to be appointed to the Advanced
Paediatric Life Support Instructor Course Development Committee
on resuscitation instruction. In addition, I have strong links with
the Department of Health (WA), working in liaison on a number
of key projects, including disaster management and preparedness.

He has been instrumental in helping to establish the New Zealand
chapter of Paramedics Australasia as the voice of the profession in
New Zealand. He has maintained his UK registration and used his
experience to promote the benefits of registration to members in
NZ and Australia.
He has a number of current educational and research interests
including the development of paramedic non-technical and
interprofessional communication skills, and the factors that lead
to improved survival rates from sudden cardiac arrest.
At the time of writing Gary is in the process of returning to the
UK to spend some more time with family. Inevitably this brings
to a close his role as a PA Director, but he intends to maintain
international membership of PA and stay in touch with the ongoing
development of the profession in Australasia.

I have gained numerous academic and professional qualifications
including a BSc in Paramedical Science; an MSc (Human Biology),
an MSc (Critical Care Paramedicine), a Post Graduate Diploma in
Critical Care Paramedicine, a Post Graduate Certificate in Intensive
Care Paramedicine, a Post Graduate Certificate in Tertiary Teaching
and a Certificate in Education. Further, I am currently enrolled in a
PhD (Emergency Medicine) with the University of Western Australia.
I am Chair of the WA Chapter of Paramedics Australasia and have
been grounded the rights and responsibilities associated with
Paramedic registration.
My current employment is with Edith Cowan University as a senior
lecturer responsible for the delivery, development & coordination
of Post Graduate & Undergraduate Paramedic Science Degree units;
examination, assessment, preceptor and student support.
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3. Other items

Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2013

Future developments and results
Likely developments in the operations of the company and the
expected results of those operations in future financial years have
not been included in this report as the inclusion of such information
is likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the company.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
30 June 2013

The directors present their report on Paramedics Australasia Ltd for
the financial year ended 30 June 2013.
1. General information
Information on directors
The names of each person who has been a director during the year
and to the date of this report are:
Michael John Davis
John Milton Hall
Leslie Charles Hotchin
Ian Patrick
Alan Kenneth Eade
Richard Brightwell
Richard Eric Larsen
Michael Peter Lazell
John Richardson
Anthony Hochberg
Nicole Louise Nott
Helen Eyles
Peter Ross Hartley (appointed on 23/11/12)
Gary Philip Strong (appointed on 08/02/13)
Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to
the date of this report unless otherwise stated.
Principal activities
The principal activity of Paramedics Australasia Ltd during the
financial year were representation of ambulance personnel and
interest of the members throughout Australia on matters relating
to professional pre hospital care and associated issues.

Meetings of directors
During the financial year, 5 meetings of directors were held.
Attendances by each director during the year were as follows:
Directors’ Meetings
Number eligible to
to attend

Number attended

Michael John Davis

5

5

John Milton Hall

5

5

Leslie Charles Hotchin

5

5

Ian Patrick

5

5

Alan Kenneth Eade

5

2

Richard Brightwell

5

5

Richard Eric Larsen

5

3

Michael Peter Lazell

5

4

John Richardson

5

5

Anthony Hochberg

5

4

Nicole Louise Nott

5

3

No significant changes in the nature of the Company’s activity
occurred during the financial year.

Helen Eyles

5

4

Peter Ross Hartley
(appointed on 23/11/12)

2

2

2. Operating results and review of operations for the year

Gary Philip Strong
(appointed on 08/02/13)

1

1

Operating results.
The profit of the Company after providing for income tax amounted
to $ 115,437 (2012: $ (26,445)).
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Environmental matters
The Company’s operations are not regulated by any significant
environmental regulations under a law of the Commonwealth or
of a state or territory.
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Indemnification of officers
No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the financial year, for any person who is or has been
an officer or auditor of Paramedics Australasia Ltd.
Auditor’s independence declaration
The auditor’s independence declaration in accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, for the year ended 30 June 2013
has been received and can be found on page 3 of the financial report.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

Director
Dated

1st October 2013

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2013, there have been:
(i)    no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Jason Croston, CA
Registered Company Auditor
Brisbane
SRJ
Dated 2nd October 2013
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013
Note
2013
		$
Revenue		886,938
Cost of sales		
(323)
Depreciation and amortisation expense
(7,623)
Conference expenses
(193,882)
Member services		(185,609)
National office expenses
(251,305)
Branch expenses
(132,618)
Other expenses
Finance costs		(142)
Profit before income tax
115,436
Income tax expense
Total comprehensive income for the year		
115,436

2012
$
771,586
(8,777)
(11,522)
(271,958)
(144,102)
(254,929)
(106,262)
(199)
(282)
(26,445)
(26,445)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2013
Note
2013
2012
		$
$
ASSETS			
CURRENT ASSETS			
Cash and cash equivalents
2
436,292
302,086
Trade and other receivables
3
34,642
47,185
Other assets
5
11,529
15,563
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS		
482,463
364,834
NON CURRENT ASSETS			
Property, plant and equipment
4
3,395
Deferred tax assets
9
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS		
3,395
TOTAL ASSETS		485,858

10,084
374
10,458
375,292

LIABILITIES			
CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Trade and other payables
6
11,798
16,669
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES		
11,798
16,669
TOTAL LIABILITIES		11,798
16,669
NET ASSETS		474,060
358,623

EQUITY			
Retained earnings		474,060
358,623
		474,060
358,623
TOTAL EQUITY		474,060
358,623

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013		
		Retained
		Earnings
2013
Note
$
Balance at 1 July 2012		
358,624
Profit for the year		
115,436
Balance at 30 June 2013		
474,060

Total

$
358,624
115,436
474,060

2012			
Note
Balance at 1 July 2011		
385,068
385,068
Loss for the year		
(26,445)
(26,445)
Balance at 30 June 2012		
358,623
358,623

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

32

FINANCIAL REPORT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013
Note
2013
2012
		$
$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:			
Receipts from customers		
886,036
705,593
Payments to suppliers and employees		
(764,200)
(757,903)
Interest received		13,445
13,629
Interest paid		(142)
(282)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
11
135,139
(38,963)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:			
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
(933)
(1,399)
Net cash used by investing activities		
(933)
(1,399)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Tasmanian branch contribution		
Repayment of borrowings		
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities		
Net increase (decrease) in cash  and cash equivalents held
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year

2

-

58,242
(7,109)
51,133

134,206
302,086
436,292

10,771
291,315
302,086

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013
1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards   Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Corporations Act 2001.
Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in financial statements
countaining relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. Material accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these financial statements are presented below and have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs modified, where applicable, by the
measurement at fair value of selected non current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.
(b) Comparative figures
When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current
financial year.
(c) Property, plant and equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
Freehold land and buildings that have been contributed at no cost, or for nominal cost are valued and recognised at the fair value of the
asset at the date it is acquired.
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the asset.
Plant and equipment that have been contributed at no cost, or for nominal cost are valued and recognised at the fair value of the asset
at the date it is acquired.
Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all property, plant and equipment, except for freehold land is depreciated on a reducing balance basis over
the asset’s useful life to the company commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are
depreciated over the shorter of the term of the lease and the assets useful life. Land is not depreciated.
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:
Fixed asset class
Depreciation Rate
Computer Software
10% - 50%
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and losses are included
in the statement of comprehensive income.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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(d) Impairment of non financial assets
At the end of each reporting period the Company reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication  exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the
higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Value in use is either the
discounted cash flows relating to the asset or depreciated replacement cost if the criteria in AASB 136 ‘Impairment of Assets’ are met.
Any excess of the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the statement of comprehensive income.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where an impairment loss on a revalued asset is identified, this is debited against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of
asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same class of asset.
(e) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less which are convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short term borrowings in current liabilities on the statement
of financial position.
(f) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods and services received by the
Company during the reporting period which remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally
paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.
(g) Income tax
Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (tax loss) for the year and is measured at
the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax consequences relating to a non monetary asset carried at fair value are determined using the assumption that the carrying
amount of the asset will be recovered through sale.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and losses can be utilised.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.
Current and deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period except where the tax arises
from a transaction which is recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, in which case the tax is recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity respectively.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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(h) Revenue and other income
Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised on transfer of goods to the customer as this is deemed to be the point in time when risks and rewards are 		
transferred and there is no longer any ownership or effective control over the goods.
Interest revenue
Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.
Rendering of services
Revenue in relation to rendering of services is recognised depends on whether the outcome of the services can be measured reliably.
If this is the case then the stage of completion of the services is used to determine the appropriate level of revenue to be recognised in
the period.
If the outcome cannot be reliably measured then revenue is recognised to the extent of expenses recognised that are recoverable.
Subscriptions
Revenue from the provision of membership subscriptions is recognised on a straight line basis over the financial year.
(i) Goods and services tax (GST)
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost
of acquisition fo the asset or as part of an item of expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are stated
inclusive of GST.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of
financial position.
Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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2 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Note
2013
		$
Cash at bank and in hand		
213,102
Short term bank deposits		
223,190
		436,292

2012
$
93,635
208,451
302,086

3 Trade and Other Receivables
Note
2013
2012
		$
$
CURRENT			
Trade receivables		48,668
71,010
Provision for impairment		
(17,432)
(27,640)
		31,236
43,370
Other receivables		3,406
3,815
Total current trade and other receivables		34,642
47,185

4 Property, Plant and Equipment
		
Note
2013
			$
Computer equipment
At cost		50,580
Accumulated depreciation		(47,185)
Total computer equipment
3,395
Total property, plant and equipment		 3,395

2012
$
49,646
(39,562)
10,084
10,084

(a) Movements in Carrying Amounts
Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the current
financial year:
Computer and
Software
		 Equipment
Total
Parent
$
$
Balance at 30 June 2013				
Balance at the beginning of year
10,084
10,084
Additions
935
935
Depreciation expense
(7,623)
(7,623)
Balance at the end of the year
3,396
3,396

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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5 Other Assets

Note
2013
2012
		$
$
CURRENT		
Prepayments		5,489
6,631
Other assets		3,150
3,150
FBT Refund		2,890
5,782
		11,529
15,563

6 Trade and Other Payables

Note
2013
2012
		$
$
CURRENT			
GST Payable		11,800
16,668
		11,800
16,668
		
7 Revenue and Other Income
Note
2013
Revenue from continuing operations		
$
Sales revenue			
- Fees		
- Branch revenue		
575,198
- Conference revenue		
237,703
		812,901
Finance income			
- Interest received		
13,445
Finance income		13,445
Other revenue			
- other revenue		
60,592
		74,037
Total Revenue		886,938

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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2012
$
48,136
304,363
335,278
687,777
13,629
13,629

70,180
83,809
771,586
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8 Income Tax Expense
(a) Reconciliation of income tax to accounting profit:
Note
2013
		$
Prima facie tax payable on profit from ordinary activities before income tax at 30% (2012: 30%)
34,826
Add:
Tax effect of:
- exempt expenses under the principle of mutuality
164,707
- other non allowable items		
9,366
- 		208,899
Less:
Tax effect of:
- recoupment of prior year tax losses not previously brought to account
1,134
- deductable expenses
2,287
- exempt income under the principle of mutuality
205,478
Income tax expense
-

2012
$
7,934

118,563
5,805
132,302

5,386
3,457
123,459
-

9 Tax
Note
2013
Recognised deferred tax assets		
$
Deferred tax asset
		 -

2012
$
374
374

10 Contingencies
In the opinion of the Directors, the company did not have any contingencies at 30 June 2013 (30 June 2012: None)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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11 Cash Flow Information
(a) Reconcilliation of cash
Note
2013
		$
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the is reconciled
to items in the statement of financial position as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents
436,292
			436,292

2012
$

302,086
302,086

(b) Reconcilliation of result for the year to cashflows from operating activities
Note
2013
		$
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Profit for the year		
115,436

(26,445)

Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to operating activities
Non cash flows in profit:
- depreciation		

7,623

11,522

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effects of purchase and disposal of subsidiaries:
  - (increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
  - (increase)/decrease in other assets
  - (increase)/decrease in deferred tax receivable
  - increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Cashflow from operations		

12,543
4,034
374
(4,871)
135,139

(23,987)
(6,549)
314
6,182
(38,963)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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$
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12 Evenets Occurring After the Reporting Date
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect
the operations of the Company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

13 Company Details
The registered office of and principal place of business of the company is:
Paramedics Australasia Ltd
906A Dana Street
BALLARAT CENTRAL VIC 3350

41

FINANCIAL REPORT

Directors’ Declaration
The directors of the company declare that:
1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 30 to 38, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and:
(a) comply with Accounting Standards   Reduced Disclosure Requirement; and
(b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2013 and of the performance for the year ended on that date of
		the Company.
2. In the directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they 		
become due and payable.
This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Michael John Davis
Director
Dated 1 October 2013
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